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China Lesso is a leading manufacturer of plastic pipes and pipe fittings
in the PRC, which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock name: China Lesso, stock code: 2128). The Group has 18 major
production bases located variously in Guangdong, Guizhou, Sichuan,
Hubei, Jiangsu, Anhui, Henan, Hebei, Heilongjiang, Jilin, Shaanxi
and Xinjiang and a sales network covering the whole country. These
production bases and sales network are strategically distributed all over
China such that the Group can provide quality products and meticulous
services to customers in a timely manner.

China Lesso is able to provide the most comprehensive range of
plastic pipes and pipe fittings to the market. These products are
widely used in areas such as water supply, drainage, power supply
and telecommunications, gas supply, floor heating, fire prevention
and agriculture. The Group has expanded to home building material
products such as whole sets of doors and windows, sanitary products
and integrated kitchens.

China Lesso is a one-stop solution provider that offers consultation,
design, implementation and after-sales services to customers. By
getting involved in projects at their initial stage, the Group helps
customers to formulate comprehensive, total solutions.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B2

Increase/
2013 2012 (decrease)
W135F 0126 BICRD)
(%)
For the year ended 31 December BZ12A31ALEFE
(RMB’000) (AR¥F )
Revenue A 13,070,547 10,891,363 20.0
Gross profit S 3,265,568 2,649,308 233
Finance costs BERA 151,003 146,231 33
EBITDA B SR 2R 2,278,852 1,881,084 211
Profit before tax B A A 1,767,511 1,482,279 19.2
Profit for the year FR T 1,431,616 1,231,271 16.8
Profit attributable to owners of the Company RAREE AEIE R 1,449,261 1,238,322 170
At 31 December (RMB’000) M2A318 (AR®T )
Total assets BEBRE 12,297,707 9,782,786 257
Cash and bank deposits e RRITIFH 2,189,242 1,922,325 139
Total debts' ER LR 2,687,116 2,224,582 208
Net debtl® &R SR 497,874 302,257 64.7
Total equity e et 7,255,943 6,027,918 204
Share information (RMB) BRHOER(ARYE)
Basic earnings per share(® BREAZ R 0.48 0.4 171
Diluted earnings per sharelc) SEEE R R 047 040 175
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) BRGNS (BL) 12 12 -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company FRAQNTHES A
per share FE{ERER 235 1.98 18.7
Financial ratios g e
Total debts to total capital® (%) B AAREE B AN KRR (%) 21 2
Net debt to equity'®! (%) B F R R L R E(%) 1 5
Interest cover (times) MEEEXRO(£) 15.09 12.86

Notes: BT

a. Represented total bank loans and other borrowings. a. RIRITE R R A B3R 4E5E -

b. Represented total debts less cash and bank deposits. b. IEERRERIRE MIRTTER ©

c. Details of the calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the  c. RNR BV GIREAR R #E BN 2 5T H a7 p B 75 Rk T
Company are set out in note 11 to financial statements. 11 e

d. Represented total debts divided by the sum of total debts and total equity. d. IEEEAAER AGETE AN F RS AR AR -

e. Represented net debt divided by total equity. e. TEE R R AR e -

f. Represented EBITDA divided by finance costs. f. bR BRITE R B FIR ARV E R A ©
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HFR 582

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12ANBLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
20135 20124 20114 20104 20094
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RESULTS E ARETRT ARETT ARETT AREBTRT ARETT
REVENUE 'ON 13,070,547 10,891,363 10,143,296 7,711,532 5,322,244
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLATERF 1,767,511 1,482,279 1,556,933 1,373,516 799,414
Income tax expense FriSfimsz (329,895) (251,008) (296,237 (241,333) (155,443)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EREF 1,431,616 1,231,271 1,260,696 1,132,183 643,971
Profit attributable to: AT FE(ES& F)
Owners of the Company ZN/NSI T ZSUN 1,449,261 1,238,322 1,260,758 1,132,183 643,971
Non-controlling interests JEFR RS (11,645) (7,051) (62) - -
1,437,616 1,231,271 1,260,696 1,132,183 643,971
At 31 December
MM2A318
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
20135 20124 20114F 20104 20094
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FINANCIAL POSITION BRI ARETRT ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 5,899,084 4,669,883 3,284,886 2,014,162 1,542,951
Current assets REAE 6,398,623 5,112,903 4,506,649 3,614,638 1,955,800
Total assets BEMREE 12,297,707 9,782,786 7,791,535 5,628,800 3,498,751
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 1,743,944 1,715,992 1,770,979 216,605 941,726
Current liabilities mEAE 3,297,820 2,038,876 1,033,191 1,407,744 1,515,037
Total liabilities BfEARE 5,041,764 3,754,868 2,804,170 1,624,349 2,456,763
NET CURRENT ASSETS FEEE T 3,100,803 3,074,027 3,473,458 2,206,894 440,763
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners ZNA TJHEH A
of the Company FEEHERS 7,239,738 6,010,033 4,986,975 4,004,451 1,041,988
Non-controlling interests FEFEHIfE RS 16,205 17,885 390 - -
Total equity T IERE 7,255,943 6,027,918 4,987,365 4,004,451 1,041,988

MaE © AEEEHZE2009F 12431 B IEFEMBEFBKER
ThiEsr A B ER -

Note: The Group's historical financial information for the year ended 31 December
2009 was extracted from the Prospectus.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ETREBES

In the previous year, China achieved steady economic growth in
a positive external environment amid the slow recovery of global
economy. Economic indicators showed that the country registered a
steady development pace. The Chinese government’s accelerating
urbanisation, increased investment in infrastructure, irrigation
engineering works and construction of social security housing provided
a fresh impetus to China Lesso’s business. Capitalising on the market
opportunities and favourable government policies, the Group leveraged
its leading position in the industry and well-established brand, and
expanded its nationwide sales network with refined segmentation of
its target markets. It also enhanced its research and development and
marketing capabilities. As a result, the Group achieved steady progress
during the year under review.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group's revenue rose
by 20.0% to approximately RMB13,071 million, compared with
RMB10,891 million in 2012. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
grew by 17.0% to RMB1,449 million, compared with RMB1,238 million
in 2012. The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK12 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2013.

In 2013, which was the third year of China's Twelfth Five-year Plan,
urbanisation remained on top of the government’s agenda. The national
development programme stimulated demand for infrastructure facilities
such as water supply, drainage, power supply and telecommunications.
In addition, increased government efforts to construct social security
housing, improve the livelihood of farmers and reform agriculture were
also favourable to the businesses of plastic pipes and home decoration
products. A brisk trade in the PRC property market during the year
under review also contributed to the Group’s business growth.

The aforesaid factors have resulted in stable growth in demand for
building materials and home decoration products. During the year
under review, the Group strengthened its existing clientele and
developed new customers. It did so through finer market segmentation
and expansion of its sales network. Meanwhile, it stepped up product
research and development, improved product quality, and enhanced
service standards, in a bid to boost customer satisfaction and loyalty.
Moreover, the Group continued to optimise its production capacity
and to augment the economies of scale. All these measures have
consolidated its market shares and leading position.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)

FEREE @)

Capitalising on the prospering PRC property market and the steadily
rising proportion of pre-decorated flats, the Group continued to
develop its new businesses of building materials and home decoration
products. It supplies products, such as whole sets of doors and
windows, sanitary products and integrated kitchens, to leading and
well-known domestic property developers with an aim of nurturing the
businesses into future growth drivers.

Looking into 2014, the Group believes that the country’s urbanisation,
renovation and conversion of its infrastructure facilities, as well as
steady, healthy development of its property sector will continue their
momentum. These trends are expected to lead to stable growth in
the demand for building materials, plastic pipes and home decoration
products. The Group will actively capture business opportunities by
expanding its nationwide sales network, fostering the business of
home decoration products and optimising its production capacity.
These measures are aimed at achieving healthy business development,
fortifying the Group’s market leadership and generating good returns to
Shareholders.

The key to the Group’s success is its wealth of talent. On behalf of the
Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express sincere gratitude
to all the employees for their relentless efforts and contribution to the
Group's development during the past year. | would also like to thank all
of our customers, business partners, Shareholders and various parties
in the community for their valuable support.

Wong Luen Hei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2014
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEANEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, aged 51, is the founder of the Group, the
chairman of the Company and was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 5 November 2009. He is also a director of various
companies in the Group. He is primarily responsible for the Group's
overall strategic planning and business management. Mr. Wong has
approximately 17 years of experience in plastic pipe operations and
management. He served as the chairman in Shunde Liansu Industrial
from December 1996 to April 1999 and was awarded “Outstanding
Private Entrepreneur of Shunde” by Shunde People’'s Government of
Foshan in 2003. Mr. Wong has been a member of Shunde District,
Foshan City Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since 2003 and a vice president of Foshan Shunde
Longjiang General Chamber of Commerce since 2006. Mr. Wong is the
spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping and the brother-in-law of Mr. Zao Manlun.

Mr. Zuo Manlun, aged 41, is the chief executive of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of
various companies in the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
management of the daily business operations of the Group. Mr. Zuo
has approximately 14 years of experience in the plastic pipe industry.
Mr. Zuo joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various
positions in operation management since joining the Group. Mr. Zuo
won several awards including “Outstanding Worker of the Plastic
Industry in the PRC” by China Plastics Processing Industry Association
in 2009. Mr. Zuo is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Luen Hei and the
younger brother of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, aged 47, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. She is also a director/supervisor of various companies in the
Group. She is primarily responsible for procurement control and
logistics management of the Group. Ms. Zuo has approximately 17
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Ms. Zuo served as a
director of Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996. In 1999,
upon establishing the Group together with Mr. Wong Luen Hei, she
held various positions in procurement. Ms. Zuo is the spouse of Mr.
Wong Luen Hei and the elder sister of Mr. Zuo Manlun.
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EENEREEABRE @)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Lai Zhigiang, aged 47, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the production and technical management
of the Group. Mr. Lai has approximately 17 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry and served as a workshop manager of Shunde
Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to November 1999. Mr. Lai
joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various positions in
production management since joining the Group.

Mr. Kong Zhaocong, aged 48, is a vice president of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of
various companies in the Group. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible
for the China's sales of the Group and has approximately 20 years
of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Kong joined the Group
in December 1999 and has held various positions in production
management and sales since joining the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Kong served as a factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian
Plastic Materials Factory from March 1993 to January 1999 and served
as a manager in the production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial
from January 1999 to November 1999.

Mr. Chen Guonan, aged 46, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the management of the quality control of
the Group. Mr. Chen has approximately 24 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry. Mr. Chen joined the Group in December 1999 and
has held various positions in production management and engineering
since joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen was a
manufacturing engineer in the technology department at Guangdong
Province Zhaoging Gaojiang Plastic Products Co., Limited from July
1989 to July 1993. From July 1993 to September 1999, he was a
deputy factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials
Factory. Mr. Chen served as a manager in the production department
of Shunde Liansu Industrial from September 1999 to November 1999.
Mr. Chen has been a deputy secretary general of Plastic Pipe Special
Committee of China Plastics Processing Industry Association since
2005. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor degree in polymer chemical from
South China University of Technology in July 1989.

HITEE @)
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EENELEIEABRRE &)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Dr. Lin Shaoquan, aged 38, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. Dr. Lin is
primarily responsible for the research and development and overseas
sales of the Group. Dr. Lin has approximately 11 years of experience in
the plastic pipe industry. Dr. Lin joined the Group in July 2002 and has
held various positions in research and development and overseas sales
since joining the Group. Over the years, Dr. Lin has won various awards
including “National May First Labor Medal” by All China Federation of
Trade Unions in 2006. Dr. Lin received a doctorate degree in polymer
chemical and physics from Sun Yat-sen University in June 2002.

Mr. Huang Guirong, aged 38, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various
companies in the Group. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for the
overall management of the factories and production facilities of the
Group and has approximately 17 years of experience in the plastic
pipe industry. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 1999 and has
held various positions in production management since joining the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang served as a deputy factory
manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory from 1996
until 1999 and served as a deputy manager of the plastic production
department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from June 1999 to November
1999. Mr. Huang completed a program of marketing from Hubei
University of Technology from September 2001 to July 2005.

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, aged 42, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 2 April 2010. He is also a supervisor of various
companies in the Group. Mr. Luo has approximately 20 years of
experience in accounting and worked at Shunde City Accounting Firm
from July 1993 to March 1996, Guangdong Dezheng Accounting
Firm with Limited Liability from April 1996 to December 2001 and
Guangdong Gongcheng Accounting Firm from January 2002 to
December 2007. Since January 2008, Mr. Luo has been working
for Foshan City Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co., Limited as
a certified public accountant. Mr. Luo is a member of The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is currently an independent
director of Winowner Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600681), which is
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Luo obtained a bachelor
degree in economics from Guangdong University of Business Studies
in June 1993.
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EENEREEABRE @)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lin Dewei, aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 27 February 2010. Mr. Lin has approximately 19
years of experience in the legal field and worked as a part-time lawyer
at various PRC law firms between 1995 and 2001. Since 2001, Mr. Lin
had been practising as a lawyer at Guangdong Everwin Law Office and
became a partner at the firm in 2004. Mr. Lin was an arbitrator of the
Guangzhou City Arbitration Commission in 2003.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Bai Chongen, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010. Dr. Bai is
currently a Mansfield Freeman professor of economics, an associate
dean and chairman of the department of Economics in the School
of Economics and Management of Tsinghua University. Dr. Bai is
a director of the National Institute for Fiscal Studies at Tsinghua
University. Dr. Bai serves as an independent director of CR Yuanta
Fund Management Co., Ltd., China-Singapore Suzhou Industrial Park
Development Group Co., Ltd. and New China Trust Co., Ltd.. Dr. Bai
had been an independent non-executive director of China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited (stock code: 998), which is listed on the Stock
Exchange, from December 2006 to October 2012. Dr. Bai obtained
a doctorate degree in mathematics from University of California, San
Diego in September 1988 and a doctorate degree in economics from
Harvard University, US in June 1993.

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010. Mr. Fung
is currently practising as a sole proprietor in the name of P C Fung &
Company, a certified public accountants firm, and is a director in Pan-
China (H.K.) CPA Limited. Mr. Fung is a Certified Public Accountant,
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of both The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and the Certified General Accountants Association
of Canada. Mr. Fung obtained a master degree in arts from Antioch
University, US in March 1987. Mr. Fung is currently an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee of
Vantage International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 15), which is
listed on the Stock Exchange. He is a member of the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department’s Users’ Committee.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EENELEIEABRRE &)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. Since 2002, Mr. Wong has been practising as a barrister of the
High Court in Hong Kong specialising in both civil and criminal litigation.
Mr. Wong is a member of The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr.
Wong obtained a bachelor degree in business administration from
Hawaii Pacific University in August 1997 and a bachelor degree in
law from City University of Hong Kong in November 2001. Mr. Wong
received a postgraduate certificate in laws from City University of Hong
Kong in July 2002.

Mr. Cheung Man Yu, aged 39, was appointed an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company on 31 December 2012. Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor
degree in arts with major in accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and is a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung has over 15 years of
experience in financial management and financial services. Mr. Cheung
is currently the vice general manager of a media company in the PRC.
Mr. Cheung was employed at the audit department of Ernst & Young,
an international accounting firm, from 2000 to 2004. Mr. Cheung had
been a vice president or director at the respective investment banking
division of BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific) Limited, UBS AG and J.P.
Morgan securities (Asia Pacific) Limited from 2004 to 2011. From 2011
to 2012, Mr. Cheung was a vice president of a company which is listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Gao Lixin, aged 50, was appointed an independent non-executive
director and a member of the nomination committee of the Company
on 31 December 2012. Mr. Gao, a senior engineer, obtained a bachelor
degree in urban gas energy supply engineering from Chongqing
Institute of Architectural Engineering in July 1985. Mr. Gao is currently
the head of The Technology Development Promotion Centre of
Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development, mainly responsible
for technology policies, standards and specifications, research in
applied technology in the areas of housing and urban-rural development
as well as the assessment of new technology and new product and its
promotion.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. Gao is the deputy head of The Plastic Pipe Experts Team for
National Chemical Building Material’s Coordination Group, a member
of Applied Technology Advisory Committee for New-Type Building
Material Products of Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development,
deputy secretary-general of Municipal Water Supply and Drainage
Standardisation Technical Committee for Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development, a member of Gas Standardisation Technical
Committee for Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development, and
a member of National Standardisation Technical Committee of Plastic
Products.

Mr. Gao has taken part in 6 national programs for science and
technology development and key projects in the national science
& technology pillar programs such as “Key technology research on
new type of pipe network system in the city”. He also served as the
editor in chief of 7 national and industrial standards, namely “Buried
polyethylene piping systems for the supply of gaseous fuels-Part 1:
Pipes” (GB 15558.1-2003), “Technical specification for polyethylene
fuel gas pipeline engineering” (CJJ 63-2008), “Technical specification
for buried plastic pipeline of sewer engineering” (CJJ 143-2010),etc.
He published 15 academic papers, and was engaged in 4 preparation
work for technical announcements, such as announcement No. 659
“Announcement published by the Ministry of Construction concerning
“Eleventh Five-Year” promotion and constraints on prohibited
technologies in use (the first batch)” by the Ministry of Construction.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EENELEIEABRRE &)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Guanggen, aged 32, is a chief financial officer of the Group and
is responsible for the Group’s overall financial and accounting affairs.
Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2008. Prior to this, he worked
as a finance manager in The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
Shunde Branch from 2004 to 2006, and was a sub-branch manager
of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Foshan Shunde
Haiginwan Sub-Branch from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Liu completed a diploma
in finance from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in
September 2005 as well as a program in laws at Guangdong University
of Business Studies from March 2007 to January 2010.

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel, aged 36, is a company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Kwan has more than 10 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Kwan joined the Group in June
2010 as secretary on a full time basis. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Kwan worked in CWCC Certified Public Accountants from March 2000
to November 2004, PricewaterhouseCoopers from November 2004
to October 2007 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from November 2007
to September 2009. The latter two firms are amongst the biggest
international accounting firms. Mr. Kwan graduated with a bachelor
degree in Commerce from Deakin University of Australia in September
2000 and obtained a master degree in business administration from
University of South Australia in August 2012. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member of
the CPA Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Mz A~~~

PEEIRRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

China Lesso is always committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices and business ethics of the Group. The
Board believes in good corporate governance practices and business
ethics which are essential for achieving sustainable development,
establishing investors’ confidence in the Company and safeguarding
and enhancing the interests of the Shareholders.

In pursuit of good and high standard of corporate governance practices,
the Board reviews the corporate governance practices of the Company
from time to time so as to meet the expectations of the Shareholders
for continual improvement, comply with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements and fulfill its commitment of pursuing excellent
corporate governance. In the opinion of the directors, the Company
complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Code during the
year, except that one of the independent non-executive directors was
unable to attend the annual general meeting (“AGM") of the Company
held on 31 May 2013 (as provided for the Code A.6.7) due to other
business engagements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code governing
securities transactions by directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to the directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year. The Model Code is also applicable to other
specific senior management officers of the Company. The directors and
chief executive's interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on pages 41 to 42.

BOARD

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 15 directors, including 9 executive
directors, 1 non-executive director and 5 independent non-executive
directors. The term of office of each of the above directors is 3 years or
within 3 years.
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BOARD (Continued)

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Continued)

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing directors shall hold office only until the next annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. In addition, at every annual general meeting of the Company,
not less than one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. If there
exists any relationship among the members of the Board, including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship, the
disclosure has been published in the sections headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” and “Directors and Chief
Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” of the Directors’ Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

To segregate the management of the Board from the daily
management and business operations of the Group effectively, the
post of chairman and the chief executive are held by Mr. Wong Luen
Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun, respectively. One of the important duties
of the chairman is to lead the Board to ensure the Board always acts
in the best interests of the Group. The chairman shall ensure the
effective operation of the Board and fully perform his/her duties and
ensure all important issues are discussed at Board meetings in a timely
manner. All directors will be consulted for any proposed items in the
agenda. The chairman has delegated the drafting of the agenda of
each Board meeting to the chief executive and the company secretary.
With the assistance of the chief executive and the company secretary,
the chairman aims to ensure all directors are adequately briefed on
any issues put forward at a Board meeting and receive sufficient and
reliable information in a timely manner.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Non-executive director provides various expertise and experiences and
conduct reviews and maintain balance to safeguard the interests of the
Group and the Shareholders. He participates in Board meetings and
committee meetings and makes independent judgements on issues
related to the Group's strategies, performance, interest conflicts and
management process so as to ensure the interests of all Shareholders
are properly considered.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

BOARD (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmations made by each of
the independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules regarding their independence. The Company regarded
all independent non-executive directors as independent parties in
accordance with the terms of the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shoulders the responsibility of providing effective,
responsible and reliable leadership to the Group. The Board exercises
its rights in management decision on the aspects of the Company’s
development strategy, management structure, investment and
financing, planning, financial and control and personnel in accordance
with the requirements of the Code.

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company'’s independent
auditor to review the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2013 and to audit the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2013. The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the financial statements of the annual report and the
interim report. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013, the directors have selected and applied appropriate
accounting policies and have made prudent and reasonable judgements
and estimates in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external auditor
of the Company on the Company's financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 54 to 55.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

(@)  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board convened five
meetings to review operating performance and funding requirement,
recent market conditions, considered and approved the Group’s overall
strategy, audited annual results for the year ended 31 December 2012
and reviewed interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2013.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman of the audit committee,
the nomination committee and the remuneration committee, attended
the AGM of the Company held on 31 May 2013.

The table below sets out the attendance of all members of the Board
at the meetings held in 2013:

EESu@m

EESEBRREAE
HE2013F12A31BILFE - E=224RARE
FUEHEERE BB kER&ATR - MU
ZEMPEREE Z BEERE - HZE2012F127
B LFENKEEZEFEEREE201346 A
30H LL61E A MEEH P HIZESE -

BEEeIRAERZES  REZEBSRFNE
BeMEREHYEHEARRN2013F5A31 AR
THRRRBFERS -
TREFN2013FESTEEHEMTEFEERIBER

Meetings attended/eligible to attend'
HERE EERHENRE

Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration

AGM Board Committee Committee Committee
Directors = BRRBFAE BEEg BERZER REZEE FHEEE
Executive directors HITES
Wong Luen Hei e 17 5/5 - 2/2 22
Zuo Manlun iwte n 5/5 - 22 2/2
Zuo Xiaoping LEH ”n 4/5 - - -
Lai Zhigiang FEER 17 5/5 - - -
Kong Zhaocong LIkEE 17 5/5 - - -
Chen Guonan FREIR n 5/5 - - -
Lin Shaoquan mwheE 1n 5/5 - - -
Huang Guirong =HEH 17 35 - - -
Luo Jianfeng prgediS ”n 5/5 - - -
Non-executive director FHITES
Lin Dewei WLz 1n 5/5 2/2 - -
Independent non-executive directors B EHTEE
Bai Chongen HER 17 5/5 - 22 22
Fung Pui Cheung B 17 5/5 22 22 22
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan TEEx 01 35 12 0/2 0/2
Cheung Man Yu RXF 17N 5/5 22 - -
Gao Lixin ELHT 7N 5/5 - 22 -

Notes: MaE
(a) Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through other means of ~ (a) REZRMARTE EFHURT - BBEEREM

video conference in accordance with the Articles.

(b) There was no other general meeting held in 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued)

The Company gives proper notices of Board meeting to directors and
the procedure of Board meetings is in compliance with the Articles
and the relevant rules and regulations. The agenda and the relevant
documents will be provided to all directors in a timely manner. The
chairman will give a proper briefing to all directors on items to be put
forward at a Board meeting. To ensure compliance with the procedure
of Board meetings and all applicable rules and regulations, all directors
may gain a full understanding of all relevant data in a timely manner
and may receive advice and services from the company secretary. The
minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary and are
available for inspection by directors and the auditor of the Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company would provide a comprehensive induction package covering
the summary of the responsibilities and obligations of a director of a
Hong Kong listed company, the Company’s constitutional documents
and the Guides on Directors’ Duties issued by the Hong Kong
Companies Registry to each newly appointed director to ensure his/her
sufficient awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime to the directors with written materials, as
well as organise seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties
and responsibilities.

In 2013, the Company invited The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
to give an introduction on the latest changes to the regulatory
requirements of “Update on SFC Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” to Board members, allowing all directors to clearly
recognise the requirements of the responsibilities of directors under
the new regulations, thus ensuring that the directors comply with these
regulations and further enhancing their awareness on the directors’
duties under the SFO and the Listing Rules.
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BOARD (Continued)

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS (Continued)

Apart from the above training offered by the Company, based on the
training records provided to the Company by the directors, the directors
also participated in the following trainings during 2013:

EESu@m

ESRIIREE(E

BT Lt AR RRENEIN  RIBEZRAX
NEHRHAIFFIREE - N20135F - ERTFELH
AT -

Type of trainings

Directors BE= b4 [Epid)
Executive directors HITES
Wong Luen Hei w=HE AC
Zuo Manlun mte AC
Zuo Xiaoping EXH AC
Lai Zhigiang PR AC
Kong Zhaocong FLIkEE AC
Chen Guonan PREIR AC
Lin Shaoquan bz AC
Huang Guirong BRE A
Luo Jianfeng BRI AC
Non-executive director FHTES
Lin Dewei ELE AB,C
Independent non-executive directors BYKHTES
Bai Chongen HER AB,C
Fung Pui Cheung S A
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan TEx C
Cheung Man Yu R’XF AC
Gao Lixin BALET AB,C

A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HEMEE R eEk  SinE

B: delivering talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums B: HMRHEGR/HEHER KHRBES

C: reading information, newspapers, journals and materials relating to the  C: [EAHEERE  F 48/ MK - BEREAR

responsibilities of directors, economy, fiscal, financial, investments and
business of the Company

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board so as to ensure
compliance with the procedure of the Board and ensure the Board is
fully briefed on all legislations, regulations and corporate governance
development and has considered their opinions when making a
decision. The company secretary is also directly responsible for the
Group's compliance with its continuing obligations under the Listing
Rules, Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases, Companies Ordinance, SFO and other applicable laws,
rules and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

BOARD (Continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the company secretary
has received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to
refresh his knowledge and skills.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the directors
and officers of the Company. The directors and officers shall not be
indemnified where there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust
proven against them.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain committees
under its supervision, including the Company's audit committee (“Audit
Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”)
and nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”) (collectively
known as “Board Committees”). Board Committees can engage
intermediaries to provide professional opinions and the reasonable
expenses incurred as a result are borne by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Mr. Fung
Pui Cheung (chairman of the Audit Committee and independent non-
executive director), Mr. Lin Dewei (non-executive director), Mr. Wong
Kwok Ho Jonathan and Mr. Cheung Man Yu (both are independent non-
executive directors). The major responsibility of the Audit Committee
is to conduct independent and objective audit of the truth and accuracy
of the Group's economic operation and financial activities, financial
policies, financial procedures, internal control, external audit, internal
audit, financial information reporting and financial data and assist the
Board in discharging its relevant duties.

The Audit Committee shall convene at least two meetings each year.
In 2013, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The attendance
record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on page 16.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)
The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during 2013:

review of the annual report and the annual results announcement
for the year ended 31 December 2012, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval,

review of Ernst & Young's confirmation of independence
and its report for the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
December 2012, with a recommendation to the Board for the
re-appointment of Ernst & Young at the 2013 annual general
meeting;

review of continuing connected transactions;

review of the Group internal audit reports;

review of the interim report and the interim results announcement
for the six months ended 30 June 2013, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;

review and approval of Ernst & Young's report for the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2013;

consideration and approval of audit and non-audit services;

review of the corporate governance report for the year ended 31
December 2012 and the corporate governance disclosures for
the six months ended 30 June 2013, with recommendations to
the Board for approval; and

review of the annual report on effectiveness of internal controls
under the Code, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed the

annua

| report and annual results announcement for the year ended 31

December 2013 with a recommendation to the Board for approval.

20

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited BB EEIZRAER AT

BEEZE2Wm

BREEE ()
NTREZZEEN

R2013FAN TIEHE ¢

EHHZE2012F 128318 IEFEMFRL
FEEENE  VERRESSRA

T LK SRR B ISP A8 S I RERR S
HEWEZEZESHZE2012F12831HIEF
ERHE - WRAEFFEZN2013FRE
BEXRE LENMZALKSFENSEHAT

ERRBERERS

HH AL EAIEIRE
EHMEZE2013F6 5308 1/ A &9 #i%k
ENFHEENES  UVRZRESTSRA
et RRB LK ES IR EREES
HZ=2013F6 830 IE/~E AR
ERIBBE MIEEA R
EHHE2012F 1283 B IEFERNTES

RS REE2013F6 A30H L/ {E A MR
XERNE URREFERB Rk

*E%J‘E#E'Jﬁliﬁﬁiﬁ?ﬂ*ﬁﬁ*?‘ FORAR - A 5
ExgR

REFEEEFREZ  BZELEEMAET2013F125
JBLEFENFREFEEENS
=M -

WEHES



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the service fees paid or payable
by the Group to the external auditors are set out as follows:

EEZES W

SRR BUED
HZE2013F12A31HILFE - REERINETZEL
B2 ek e 2 RS EREINT

RMB million
ARBBEER
Annual audit services FREHRS 43
Non-audit services* B R 36
Total st 19

# The non-audit service fees paid or payable to the external auditors were mainly ~ # B EMINEZBR IR REE - FEBEH

for reviewing the Company’s interim results and providing advice on matters in
relation to taxation and information technology. The provision of these services
by external auditors were cost effective and efficient due to their professional
knowledge.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely Mr.
Fung Pui Cheung (chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
independent non-executive director), Mr. Wong Luen Hei (executive
director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Dr. Bai Chongen and
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan (both are independent non-executive
directors).

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for studying
and formulating the Company’s remuneration policy and incentive
mechanism and is responsible for formulating the standards for the
appraisal of the Company's directors and senior management and
conducting appraisals.

In order to determine the level of remuneration and fees paid to
members of the Board, market rates and factors such as each
director’s workload, responsibility and job complexity are taken into
account. The following factors are considered when determining the
remuneration packages of directors and senior management:

o business requirements;

o individual performance and contribution to results;

o company performance and profitability;

o retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

° changes in relevant markets, including supply and demand
fluctuations and changes in competitive conditions; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)
° general economic situation.

During the review process, no individual director is involved in
decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2013, the Remuneration Committee convened two meetings
and made the recommendation of the remuneration packages for
directors and senior management to the Board. The attendance record
of the meetings is set out on a named basis on page 16.

Details of directors’ remuneration and five highest paid employees
are set out in note 8 to the financial statements. In addition, the
remuneration of the three senior management fell within the band of
less than RMB1 million.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises six members, namely Mr.
Wong Luen Hei (chairman of the Nomination Committee and executive
director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Fung Pui Cheung,
Dr. Bai Chongen, Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan and Mr. Gao Lixin (all
of them are independent non-executive directors). The major duty of
the Nomination Committee is to study and make recommendations
on the candidates, selection criteria and procedure in respect of the
Company's directors and senior management.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination Committee
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies
suitable candidates if necessary and makes recommendations to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2013, the Nomination Committee convened two meetings. The
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board, recommended the Board on the list of retiring directors
for re-election at the annual general meeting on 31 May 2013, and
reviewed the independence of all independent non-executive directors.
The Nomination Committee formulated the Board diversity policy and
recommended to the Board for approval. The attendance record of the
meetings is set out on a named basis on page 16.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy in September 2013
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level
will support the attainment of the Company's strategic objectives
and sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and other qualities.
The Company will also take into consideration its own business model
and specific needs from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee will review
the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 15 directors. One of
them is a female. One third of the Board members are independent
non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical review and control
of the management process. The composition of the Board reflects the
necessary balance of skills, professional experience and knowledge for
effective leadership of the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system in the aspects of finance, operation, compliance control
and risk management functions with the assistance of the Audit
Committee. The Group's internal control includes the establishment of
a management structure that defines the authority to help the Group
achieve its business targets, protect assets to prevent unauthorised
embezzlement or handling, ensuring maintaining proper accounting
records as reliable financial data for internal use and publication and
ensuring compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
system aims to provide reasonable (but not absolute) assurance
that there are no material misstatements or losses and manage (but
not completely eliminate) the risks of the Group’s operating system
failure and failure to achieve business objectives. Having reviewed the
Group's internal control report, the Board considers the internal control
system effective and appropriate.

EEZES W

EZEHESTILBE
EEeN2013FIARMESENEZ TR
) ZBRE|EHEEEKNEZITIWITE -

ARRHMBEEEEEASEZTICERERER
ARE B RRAFSERRERIS - ARB#EE
BZEAZ - BREREFRRER - Fi - Xk
HESS Bk BELR - WL ARREM
B BREREEERBZ UL - ARARE
EEXexENEHEAR  THIREEEARSGE
BEALARTE - REZEe8(RERBERM
E)BRMKEEFENEZTTEBER)  BRETKE
BEM -

RABREEH  EFERETRRESF - Hh—
BARENE - EFEKREBEP =02 — RELIFH
TEE  FAMELE AR REREERE - &
EFENERRRARREERERBEERFNOR
Bt BELR MM mAUSSEFE -

BB

EEe 2 RABARBASERITAERNAIBIE
Hl o RELZE2013F12A831ALEFE  EFEE
EEZZES BT  YRSEREHERE
% BIE - AREH AR E BT E AR
HWITESE - AEER AP ERY AT R
MERERE U ASEEEREmEREZ - R
EEENHRCEEDRANER  BRRETEE
K€ 5T R0 B 1E A 1] 5210 B 75 Bk 4 o 6 48 A3 2 )
ENgE1T - WHERFABBEEZREN - ZEHE
A B (B FE4R 8 ) (R B I 48 KK E R
K - WEIE (BT EER)ASEEER
REARRKRGEEREBBZNAR - REREASE
EmAERER  EESRBZNTIEEIRFE
BEKRNEE -

Annual Report 2013 23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

PEEEWRE @)

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

1

The Group has formulated a “whistleblowing policy” whereby
employees can report any matters to the Chairman or the Audit
Committee secretly by sending electronic mails to the designated
address or by phone. Such matters may include misconduct, irregular
conduct or fraud regarding financial matters and accounting practices
without fear of being accused. Any Shareholder or stakeholder can also
report similar concerns in writing or verbally in confidence to the Audit
Committee.

THE SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS ON
REQUISITION BY THE SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Articles, the Shareholder(s) may request for the
convening of extraordinary general meetings following the procedures
below:

° Any two or more Shareholder(s) or any one Shareholder which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) may request
for the convening of extraordinary general meetings by written
requisition deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office. The requisition shall specify
the object of the meeting and be signed by the requisitionist(s),
and such requisitionist(s) must hold as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at the general
meeting of the Company.

o The Board shall proceed to convene the extraordinary general
meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

° If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or
any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which the meeting may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition. All
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS ON

REQUISITION BY THE SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

° An extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of a
special resolution shall be called by not less than 21 days’ notice
in writing and any other extraordinary general meeting shall be
called by not less than 14 days’ notice in writing. The notice of
the meeting shall specify the time, place, and agenda of the
meeting, particulars of the resolutions to be considered and in
the case of special business, the general nature of that business.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS’' ENQUIRIES
TO THE BOARD

The Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the Company
to the Board at the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong or by email or through the Company's investor relations whose
contact details are provided in the “Corporate Information” section
of this Annual Report. In addition, the Shareholders can contact
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company's
branch share registrar, if they have any enquiries about their
shareholdings and entitlements to dividend.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency
in communication with the Shareholders and investors in general.
Communication between the Company and the Shareholders is
conducted through various channels, including interim and annual
reports, information published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company and general meetings. The Company encourages the
Shareholders to attend the Company's general meetings. The Group's
financial and other information is also published on the website of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.lesso.com).

The Company's senior management endeavours to maintain an
open dialogue channel with the investment sector to ensure they
have a thorough understanding of the Company and its operations
and strategies. The Company has emphasised the importance of
the function of investor relations, engaged a dedicated independent
third party to maintain investor relations and conduct investor/analyst
meetings irregularly and led investors and analysts to visit its plants.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

As regards investor relations, the Group will actively conduct activities
related to investor relations in the future to strengthen its corporate
responsibility so that global investors can have an adequate knowledge
and understanding of the Company's operating strategy, financial
performance and development prospects. The Company will actively
develop and maintain close relationship with investors, analysts and
media to achieve sound investor relations management.

The Company applies the principle of a quiet period in its investor
relations communications. During a quiet period, the Company does
not comment on market prospects or factors affecting business and
performance, nor does the company engage in discussion on events
or trends related to the reporting period. The Company will not initiate
any meeting or conference call with public in which these matters
are discussed. A quiet period starts at 60 days or 30 days prior to the
disclosure of annual results or interim results respectively, and lasts
until the announcement of the annual results or the interim results.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no change to the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The latest
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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OVERVIEW

From a manufacturer of plastic pipes, China Lesso has evolved
into a supplier of premium and comprehensive building materials,
home decoration products and services by capitalising on market
opportunities and favourable government policies. Building on its
market leadership in pipes and pipe fittings and its economies of
scale in production of the relevant products, the Group is also actively
diversifying into new businesses of building materials and home
decoration products, which include whole sets of doors and windows,
sanitary products and integrated kitchens. It will develop the new
businesses into future growth drivers to take full advantage of the
country’s urbanisation, social security housing projects and property
boom. With an enormous sales network covering major markets in
China and 18 production bases in 12 provinces, the Group is well-
positioned to reinforce its market leadership in Southern China and
expand its business beyond the region.

China Lesso's development strategy paid off as it recorded satisfactory
performance in 2013. Steady growth in sales led to a 20.0% year-on-
year increase in revenue to RMB13,071 million for the year. Gross
profit grew by 23.3% to RMB3,266 million, while gross profit margin
rose to 25.0%. Profit attributable to shareholders rose by 17.0% year-
on-year to RMB1,449 million. Basic earnings per share were RMBO0.48.

MARKET OVERVIEW

2013 was the third year of China's Twelfth Five-year Plan. Urbanisation
remained as a top issue on the agenda. The country’'s development
programme propelled steady growth in demand for infrastructure
facilities such as water supply, drainage, power supply and
telecommunications. In addition, the government stepped up efforts to
construct social security housing, improve the livelihood of farmers and
reform agriculture. These government policies were favourable to the
businesses of plastic pipes and home decoration products. During the
year under review, the property boom in the PRC also stimulated the
Group's business growth.
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MARKET OVERVIEW (continued)

The Chinese government has set specific targets for urbanisation at the
Third Plenum of the 18th Central Committee of the Communist Party
of China, with a view to achieving healthy development in the long run.
The urbanisation ratio is expected to rise from approximately 54.0% in
2013 to 60.0% in 2018. To attain this goal, the government will step
up investment in six types of infrastructure facilities in cities, including
underground pipe networks, sewage and refuse treatment, renovation
of old pipe networks for gas and heat, public transport such as metro
lines and light rails, electric power distribution networks, as well as
environmental protection facilities.

In particular, construction of municipal pipe networks and hydraulic
engineering works will benefit the development of the pipe business.
Construction and renovation of water supply pipe networks during
the period of the Twelfth Five-year Plan is expected to be immense,
because a total of approximately 92,300 kilometres of dated
water pipe in networks will be upgraded with an investment of
approximately RMB83.5 billion. Approximately RMB184.3 billion has
been earmarked for building additional networks of approximately
185,000 kilometres of municipal water pipes. Sewage pipe networks of
approximately 160,000 kilometres will be built with a total investment
of approximately RMB244.3 billion. Meanwhile, the government will
expedite the construction of sewage and refuse treatment facilities
and their underground ancillary to promote the recycling of used water
discharged from construction works and that of urban sewage. The
capacity for treating urban sewage will increase to over 200 million
cubic metres per day.

The completion of infrastructure facilities will pave the way for
property development, including the construction of social security
housing and private residential real estate projects. This will, in
turn, boost the demand for building materials and home decoration
products. Statistics from China’s Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development showed that, during the period from 2011 to the end of
2013, construction of 24.9 million units of urban social security housing
was commenced, among which 15.8 million units were completed.
The government has set the target of constructing 36 million housing
units of various types under its schemes for social security housing and
conversion of shanty towns during the Twelfth Five-year Plan period.
According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, investments in
the country’s property development amounted to RMB8,601.3 billion in
2013, representing a nominal growth of 19.8% over 2012. The thriving
property sector brings upon enormous market potential for the Group’s
newly-developed building materials and home decoration products
businesses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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MARKET OVERVIEW (continued)

The trends of the country's development have resulted in stable
growth in the demand for plastic pipes and home decoration products.
The Group captured the business opportunities by leveraging its leading
position in the industry, sizeable production capacity, nationwide
sales network, innovative advantages in research and development of
products and technologies and its widely-recognised brand. It also kept
abreast of market trends, refined segmentation of the target markets
and enhanced its marketing and sales capability. All these measures
contributed to a 20.0% growth in the Group's revenue for 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW

PLASTIC PIPES AND PIPE FITTINGS BUSINESS

The Group is principally engaged in the business of plastic pipes and
pipe fittings, which are widely applied to such fields as water supply,
drainage, power supply, telecommunications, gas supply, agriculture,
floor heating and fire prevention. During the year under review, the
business registered steady progress, as the Group capitalised on the
country’s urbanisation by enhancing the advantage of its economies
of scale, and by leveraging its sizeable sales network to develop new
markets, especially those outside of Southern China. It also developed
new products, enhanced the quality of its products and services,
reinforced its existing customer base and developed new clients. As a
result, aggregate sales volume of plastic pipes and pipe fittings grew
by 17.2% to 1,272,631 tonnes in 2013, compared with the 1,085,415
tonnes in 2012. Sales of PVC and non-PVC plastic pipes and pipe
fittings continued to register growth. PVC products accounted for
65.9% of the plastic pipes and pipe fittings revenue.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

PLASTIC PIPES AND PIPE FITTINGS BUSINESS (Continued)
The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue from plastic pipes
and pipe fittings by product for 2013 and 2012:

EFEEEE ()

BREBEREMEHE(E)
TEREI2013F K201 2F B BB RE AR

EmB| DM

2013 2012
2013F 20126

RMB million % of total revenue RMB million % of total revenue

ARBBEET BB A% ARBEEET 1ERIA %

Water supply oK 4,822 395% 4,149 39.7%

Drainage HEK 4,637 38.0% 3,941 31.7%
Power supply and BHE

telecommunications K 2139 175% 1,870 17.9%

Gas supply KRR e 186 15% 130 1.3%

Others” H? 431 3.5% 368 34%

Total st 12215 100.0% 10,448 100.0%

# “Others"” include agricultural use, floor heating and fire prevention.

The Group priced its products on a cost-plus basis and achieved
economies of scale in production during the year under review by
enhancing the production capacity utilisation rate, and raising both the
efficiency and yield of production. The average selling price (“ASP")
of plastic pipes and pipe fittings decreased by 0.3% to RMB9,598 per
tonne in 2013 from RMB9,626 per tonne in 2012. The ASP of PVC
products increased by 0.3% to RMB8,022 per tonne. The ASP of
non-PVC products decreased by 1.4% to RMB15,472 per tonne. The
average cost of plastic pipes and pipe fittings was generally stable,
decreasing slightly by 2.1% to RMB7,124 per tonne in 2013 from
RMB7,278 per tonne in 2012.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

PLASTIC PIPES AND PIPE FITTINGS BUSINESS (Continued)
The table below sets out the breakdown of sales volume, revenue and
average selling price by product material for 2013 and 2012:

EFEEEE ()

BREBREMFER(E)
TR#FI2013F R 2012 F 2 E )R 8] 73 89 3
B WARFHEBHEFE

013 012 Changein
W3E M #
Sales Average Sales Average Sales Average
volume Revenue  selling price volume Revenue  selling price volume Revenue selling price
HE WA THEE JEE WA THER e WA THEER
Tonne ~ RMB million RMB Tonne  RMB million RMB
B ARMEER AR¥ B ARMEER ARE
Plastic pipes and pipe fitings AR ERR B/
-Pvc® —puc? 1,003362 8049 802 855,111 6,845 7999 17.2% 17.6% 03%
~Non-PvC" —3EpyCY 269,269 4,166 15472 229638 3603 15,690 17.3% 15.6% (1.4)%
1212631 12215 9598 1,085,415 10448 9626 17.2% 16.9% (0.3)%
Construction contracts TiAH N/A TER 8 NANER  NATER - NANER  NAMNER NMVNER NAVRER
Others® Hifo NA TEH M NATER NATER W3 NATER  NATER 801%  NATER
Total st NA TNEA BN NADER  NANER 10891 NATNER  NATER 0%  NANER
Notes: PRE -
(a) “PVC" refers to material used in the manufacture of plastic pipes and pipe  (a) [PVClEE—BRAREERRMAE REFEREER
fittings with high mechanical strength and hardness. BRI KL ©
(b) “Non-PVC" plastic pipes and pipe fittings mainly refer to those made of PE and  (b) [FEPVC [ZER1E 1B R & 11 = Z = PEH| & PP-Rl -
PP-R.
(c) “Others” include ancillary, home building material products and other materials. ~ (c) [Eth BIERE - REEMER R o [ Hib ]
Sales volumes for “others” are measured in units rather than tonnes and the HISHE AR M IELABERT - A TRIERMNE S B
size of the units between different products may vary. e B ANARE o
HOME DECORATION PRODUCTS BUSINESS RERMERER

To capitalise on China’s urbanisation and property boom, especially
the advent of pre-decorated flats, the Group has been diversifying into
new businesses of building materials and home decoration products,
such as whole sets of doors and windows, sanitary products and
integrated kitchens, since 2012. The Group partnered with leading and
well-known domestic property developers to provide such building
materials and home decoration products for their residential property
projects. During the year under review, the Group marketed its home
decoration products business with an objective of “Building an easy
life for dwellers”. Progress in developing this business met the
expectations of management. The Group achieved synergy between
the home decoration product business and the manufacturing and
sales of plastic pipes and pipe fittings, which is its principal business,
as they are complementary in nature and share the same sales
channels. The prospect of a rising proportion of pre-decorated flats in
China presents a huge business opportunity for the business of home
decoration products. The Group intends to develop the business into
a future growth driver, as China Lesso strives to evolve into a supplier
of premium and comprehensive building materials, home decoration
products and services from a manufacturer of plastic pipes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

GEOGRAPHIC REVENUE ANALYSIS

A geographic breakdown of revenue shows that Southern China
remained a major market for the Group during the year under review,
accounting for 60.5% of the Group's turnover. The Group vigorously
developed markets outside of Southern China, and they became the
Group's growth drivers and boosted the overall sales. As a result,
markets outside of Southern China accounted for a higher proportion of
the Group's turnover for 2013.

EFEEEE ()

WA b3 2 4

i A S EMAEBEFENISEEMS &
ANEE L EE60.5% ° NEBEIRIAREZER I
MG - BERAEBNIERE  FEHEEHEE
EF o FHE - 2013 F ERM AN TG AR E B E
L HIB AR

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by operating T2 &51]20134F [2201 2 3R4& & i [& 215 A9 A
region for 2013 and 2012: =g
2013 2012
20135 2126
RMB million % of total revenue RMB million % of total revenue
Region* i &* AREBER L OND ARBBET BB A%
Southern China Ecdea) 7,906 60.5% 6,882 63.2%
Southwestern China PO R 1319 101% 1,070 9.8%
Central China = 1,308 10.0% 1,035 9.5%
Eastern China HH 660 5.0% 549 5.0%
Northern China Bl 875 6.7% 689 6.3%
Northwestern China [itplé: i1 472 3.6% 303 2.8%
Northeastern China ESla: il 303 2.3% 22 21%
Outside China HETE S 228 1.8% 141 1.3%
Total “ast 13,07 100.0% 10,891 100.0%

# Details of the scope of coverage of each region are set out in note 4 to financial

statements.

Capital expenditure and Capacity Expansion

During the year under review, the Group’s annual designed capacity for
production of plastic pipes and pipe fittings increased to approximately
1.8 million tonnes. In a bid to satisfy the market demand, the Group
decided to have production bases built in Hainan, Yunnan and
Shandong. The production bases in Hainan and Yunnan will commence
operation in 2014, while preparations are currently underway for the
construction of the production base in Shandong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

SALES NETWORK

The Group has established a nationwide sales network. As at the
end of December 2013, it had approximately 1,780 independent
distributors, for whom the Group's sales team provided comprehensive
and professional sales and after-sales services. The sales team
carried out finer segmentation of the market for building materials
and home decoration products and conducted marketing campaigns
according to the requirements and characteristics of the various local
markets. This enabled the Group to strengthen its market leadership in
Southern China and expand its market shares vigorously elsewhere by
developing new markets outside of Southern China, especially in third-
and fourth-tier cities.

STAFF TRAINING

The key to the Group's success is its wealth of talent. High-calibre
personnel are being groomed to support the business development.
During the year under review, the Lesso College was established to
provide professional training in production, sales and management
for staff at various levels, with a goal to improving the Group’s overall
operating efficiency. Meanwhile, the Group also invited professional
trainers to conduct lectures for staff on a regular basis. With the two-
pronged approach, the Group has established a comprehensive staff
training mechanism.

PROSPECTS

China’s gross national product growth decelerated slightly in 2013,
casting uncertainty and risks over the macro-economy, fixed asset
investment and retail market in the year ahead. Looking into 2014, the
country’s economy will continue to be influenced by the change in
its model of economic development and the economic conditions of
Europe, the United States and emerging economies. Nevertheless, the
Group believes that urbanisation, agricultural reform and the increase in
properties completed in China will continue at a steady pace. This will
lead to consistent growth in the demand for building materials, plastic
pipes and home decoration products. To seize business opportunities,
the Group has formulated the following development strategies:
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

VIGOROUS DEVELOPMENT OF A NATIONWIDE SALES NETWORK
The Group will fortify its market leadership in Southern China and
will actively develop new markets by expanding its sales network
outside of Southern China. The Group will also continue to develop
its distribution network and broaden its sales channels. Meanwhile,
it will continue to identify opportunities for business development in
overseas markets, especially emerging markets such as the Middle
East, Africa and Southeast Asia.

DEVELOPING BUSINESS OF BUILDING MATERIALS AND HOME
DECORATION PRODUCTS INTO FUTURE GROWTH DRIVERS
China's infrastructure and social security housing projects as well as
property development will gain momentum against the backdrop of
urbanisation. Notably, the proportion of pre-decorated flats will be
on the rise. To tap the trends for growth, the Group will proactively
develop its burgeoning businesses of building materials and home
decoration products by coming up with more models of whole sets
of doors and windows, sanitary products and integrated kitchens. The
Group will continue to partner with major domestic property developers
and supply its products to their residential property projects. This
will help develop the potentially lucrative new businesses of building
materials and home decoration products into a future growth driver for
the Group.

OPTIMISING PRODUCTION CAPACITY TO SUPPORT BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

To support its business expansion and enhance its advantage
of economies of scale in production, the Group is expanding its
production capacity for plastic pipes and pipe fittings. Its production
bases in Hainan and Yunnan will commence operation in 2014, while
preparations are underway for the construction of a production base
in Shandong. The Group will also optimise the operation of its existing
plants to improve the overall production efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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CONCLUSION

Over the years, China Lesso has been a leader in the country’s plastic
pipes and pipe fittings industry. In order to gain an edge against
competition to capitalise on the country’s urbanisation, infrastructure
construction and thriving property sector, the Group will continue to
develop opportunely its nationwide network of production facilities
and service network. This will also enable it to provide the market with
the most comprehensive range of premium products. Meanwhile, the
Group will continue to develop its home decoration products business.
By further improving its product quality and enhancing its core
competitive advantages, China Lesso aims at realising the corporate
mission of “Building an easy life for dwellers” and bringing fruitful
returns to shareholders and investors.

EARNINGS PERFORMANCE

The Group reported steady financial performance during the year
under review. Revenue amounted to RMB13,071 million, an increase
of 20.0% over the last year. Gross profit for 2013 rose by 23.3%
to RMB3,266 million from 2012. The profit for the year amounted
to RMB1,438 million for 2013, representing an increase of 16.8%
from 2012. Basic earnings per share for 2013 improved by 17.1% to
RMBO0.48.

During the year under review, there was an increase in the demand
for plastic pipes and pipe fittings. The Group saw a steady growth in
turnover. This was mainly driven by improving economies of scale and
strengthening of sales network. The Group's efficient production and
high quality products facilitated business development. This in turn
helped maintain the Group's gross profit margin at a reasonable level.

However, increases in staff salaries, depreciation charges together
with selling and distribution expenses dragged down the pre-tax profit
margin. Depreciation were incurred from the opening of new factory
premises, office buildings and equipment. Selling and distribution
expenses increased mainly due to increase in packaging costs.
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EARNINGS PERFORMANCE (continued)

Finance costs increased by 3.3% to RMB151 million during the year
under review due to making of new loans. The Group’s management
has been active in establishing relationship with various banks in a bid
to widen sources of funding.

The Group's effective tax rate increased from 16.9% in 2012 to 18.7%
in 2013.

As a result, the Group's profit before tax increased by 19.2% to
RMB1,768 million and profit attributable to owners of the Company
increased by 17.0% to RMB1,449 million. Meanwhile, pre-tax profit
margin and net profit margin also moved down to 13.5% and 11.0%
respectively during the year under review from last year's 13.6% and
11.3%.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'’S
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING (“IPO")

The net proceeds from the Company's IPO in June 2010 after
deducting the relevant expenses were approximately HK$1,860 million
(approximately RMB1,629 million equivalent).

Up to 31 December 2013, all the net proceeds from the IPO has been
applied in accordance with the results of allocation announcement of
the Company dated 22 June 2010.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial policies. Finance, fund
utilisation and fund raising activities are subject to effective centralised
management and supervision. The Group keeps reasonable gearing
level and adequate liquidity.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total debts (i.e. total bank
loans and other borrowings) of approximately RMB2,687 million, of
which 76.4% was denominated in US dollar, 18.0% was denominated
in HK dollar and 5.6% was denominated in Renminbi. Other than
approximately US$259 million of the outstanding Senior Notes due in
2016, the Group's borrowings are subject to floating rates ranging from
1.21% to 6.30% per annum with maturity periods ranging from within
one year to two years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's current assets and current
liabilities were approximately RMB6,399 million and RMB3,298 million
respectively. The Group's current ratio (that is, the ratio of current assets
over current liabilities) and the quick ratio (that is, the ratio of current
assets less inventories over current liabilities) reduced to 1.94 and 1.20
from 2.51 and 1.64 as at 31 December 2012, respectively. The Group's
total equity increased to approximately RMB7,256 million. The Group's
gearing ratio (calculated on the basis of the total debts divided by the
sum of total debts and total equity) stood at a healthy level of 27.0%.

With cash and bank deposits, including restricted cash, of
approximately RMB2,189 million as well as unutilised banking facilities,
the directors consider that the Group has sufficient working capital for
its operation and future development.

The Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation
other than borrowings denominated in US dollar and HK dollar. No
hedging has been arranged on the above-mentioned exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group's held-to-
maturity investments with an aggregate net carrying amount of
RMB242,667,000 were pledged to a bank to secure the banking facility
granted to the Company. The Company has not utilised this banking
facility as at 31 December 2013.

The shares of certain subsidiaries of the Company incorporated outside
the PRC were pledged as securities for issuance of the Senior Notes.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed a total of approximately
8,000 employees including directors. Total staff costs were RMB562
million during the year under review. The Group ensures that the
remuneration packages for employees are determined based on their
work performance, professional experience and the prevailing industry
practice. Discretionary year-end bonus may be paid to employees
based on individual performance. Other benefits to employees include
medical insurance, retirement scheme and training programmes. Due
to the increase in employment of managers and workers, the overall
salary also rose during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT

ERRHE

Set out below are the annual report presented by the Board together
with the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries and a joint venture are set out in
notes 37 and 15 respectively to financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 56 to 142.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK12
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Proposed
Final Dividend"), which will be paid out of profits and/or share premium
of the Company, to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 11 June 2014,
subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 30 May 2014 (the “2014
AGM"). It is expected that the Proposed Final Dividend will be paid on
Friday, 20 June 2014.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

() FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND
VOTE AT THE 2014 AGM
The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 27 May 2014 to Friday, 30 May 2014, both dates
inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the 2014 AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 26 May 2014.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (continued)

() FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO THE PROPOSED
FINAL DIVIDEND
The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 9 June 2014 to Wednesday, 11 June 2014, both dates
inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the Proposed
Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’'s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 6 June 2014.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years, as extracted from audited consolidated financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 3.
The summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The details of the movements in the Group's property, plant
and equipment during the year are set out in note 12 to financial
statements.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

The details of the movements in the Group's prepaid land lease
payments during the year are set out in note 13 to financial statements.

BORROWINGS

The details of the Group's borrowings are set out in note 23 to financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 26 to financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

At 31 December 2013, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB2,267 million (2012: RMB2,125 million). The amount
of RMB1,844 million (2012: RMB1,748 million) represented the
Company’s share premium which may be distributable provided that
immediately following the date on which the divided is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the total turnover attributable to
the Group's five largest customers was less than 30% of the Group's
total turnover. The total purchase attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers was less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year did the directors, their associates or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have any beneficial
interests in these suppliers or customers referred to above.

DIRECTORS

Directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Bai Chongen

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Mr. Gao Lixin

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Zuo Manlun, Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, Mr. Lai Zhigiang, Mr. Chen Guonan
and Dr. Lin Shaoquan are subject to retirement by rotation at the 2014
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2014 AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

EERBEL

BR2014FRRBFASBERETINEEMEE
AEEFTIAAIR—FABRASBRIEMBAS
BB CEEREERIN B RIEEL -

EERTREABRRE - HERA
REBEORR R AR

R2013F12A31H » KRAES RITHAHNA
N AR E AT AR A E (55 5 R HE 1§ M B XVER
WEEZE )RR, - ABRRGD REEFTFHEERE
BH K E KD E3521EBR AR R TFE K&
FRECER - SARIEAZYE ST BIZE B AN A B S B 32 Al
RIS AR AT

Number of

Number of issued ordinary shares held' underlying Percentage

HAMERITEEREA shares to be of the issued

allotted upon share capital

Personal Family Corporate exercise of of the

Name interests interests interests share options'®! Total Company

B

BTERLT AL

[Tl BRTRA

®E fBAER FiEER ARER R EEE By NEDL

Wong Luen Hei - 1,384,800 (L) 2,116,593,000 (L) 923200 (Lo 2,118,901,000 (L) 68.89%
B

Zuo Xiaoping 1,384,800 (L)©  2,116,593,000 (L) - 923200 (L)@ 2,118,901,000 (L) 68.89%
EX%

Zuo Manlun 1,900,000 (L) - - 1,942,000 (L)@ 3,842,000 (L) 0.12%
Timfw

Lai Zhigiang - - - 1,733,000 (L)@ 1,733,000 (L) 0.05%
Rt

Kong Zhaocong - - - 1,928,000 (L)@ 1,928,000 (L) 0.06%
Lk

Chen Guonan - - - 1,927,000 (L)@ 1927,000 (L) 0.06%
BER

Lin Shaoquan - - - 1,327,000 (L)@ 1,327,000 (L) 0.04%
iz

Huang Guirong - - - 1,427,000 (L)@ 1,427,000 (L) 0.04%

Luo Jianfeng 1,927,000 (L) - - - 1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
Epig

Lin Dewei - - - 692,000 (L) 692,000 (L) 0.02%
i
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DIRECTORS’” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Notes:
(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.
(b) These shares of the Company are held by New Fortune, which is wholly-owned

by Mr. Wong Luen Hei (“Mr. Wong"). Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is the spouse of Mr.
Wong, and therefore Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is deemed to be interested in all the
shares of the Company in which Mr. Wong is interested by virtue of the SFO.

(c) Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is directly holding of 1,384,800 shares of the Company and
was granted with options to subscribe for 923,200 shares of the Company with
an exercise price of HK$1.82 per share under the Pre-IPO share option scheme
("Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) adopted by the Company with effect from
14 May 2010. Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, and therefore Mr.
Wong is deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which Ms.
Zuo Xiaoping is interested by virtue of the SFO.

(d) All other directors’ interests represent the number of shares to be issued upon
the exercise in full of the options granted to them with an exercise price of
HK$1.82 per share under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
directors, chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

(@  FEILIEZAIRZEFEFNER °

()  AEARFRBOAMEEMFE  ZAFHERBESL
E(EEEDZERA - EXHREARLENR
18 - ERIEES REGD - EE L TR AR
BEREBANAAARBR T HREA L -

(c) LS LT EEFE AR RA1,384,800 i 1) AR
BARRIERNN2010F5 A 14 A REBH EIX AR
ERIERET B ([ B R AR SR EARETE )&
WHERE  ATRERITEE1Q2BTRABARAN
923,200 i 17 R A RLTFLLTHERE - Bt
RIEFHRAEKG - ERERBANL TR T
BEFTE AR ARG PSR -

) PIEEMERNREREFESEERTEES2ELE
BITERE AR AR EEBEE BER B
BATEITRRMEE -

B EXHTIEESN - R20134%F12A31H » ARA]
EERITBAESBEN AR R S E A RE =R
AR - ABRERR D & B E R A TR E
FHH LB GO E352 AR N E M - FIREIEZ
HESTRIBBAIAA R R X FTHIMERS SUK R o

TERRNERRAR

2013512 A318 - RAR TG sABRER 5
BEREESRHAEEHIEI36HETFENER
R SOABEBA T (R AR ES RITHK
BEBRINIT -

Number of issued Percentage of the issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity ordinary shares held® share capital of the Company
BENERT EARQARERT
REREE E27) ZEREE BRAKE 2L
New Fortune Beneficial ownert 2,116,593,000 (L) 68.81%
FEE EnEg AL
Notes: BRE -
(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities. (a) FEILHEZATRZEESFNITA -
(b) Mr. Wong is the ultimate beneficial owner of New Fortune. Under Part XV of  (b) BRERTEEZERERBAA BEFHFIHE

the SFO, Mr. Wong is deemed to have an interest in these shares, as disclosed
in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

The above shares were the same shares as set out under the
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above. Save
as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the directors of the
Company were not aware of any person or corporation (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any interests
or short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes on 14 May 2010,
pursuant to which the Company is entitled to grant options prior to and
after the IPO. The details of both share option schemes are as follows:

1. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved by resolutions of the Shareholders on
14 May 2010 and the summary of terms of such Share Option
Scheme are disclosed in the Prospectus. No share options
were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under
the Share Option Scheme during the year and there were no
outstanding share options under the Share Option Scheme as at
31 December 2013.

2. PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(a) Summary of terms

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
approved by the Shareholders pursuant to the written
resolutions of the Shareholders dated 14 May 2010, is to
give employees an opportunity to have a personal stake
in the Company and help motivate them to optimise their
future performance and efficiency to the Group and/or to
reward them for their past contributions, to attract and
retain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with
such employees who are significant to and/or whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance,
growth or success of the Group.

The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
are set out in note 28 to financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(b) Outstanding options granted
All the options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
were granted on 21 May 2010 at a consideration of HK$1
paid by each grantee. During the year, no share option
were granted or cancelled under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme other than those exercised and lapsed/forfeited as
mentioned below.

Details of the movement of the Pre-IPO Share Options
during the year ended 31 December 2013 were as follows:

T )

2.

BRRRMBERBRETE(E)

(b)

3% B 1 R AT R A BB AR
BRARBERBRETSNMER
EHEER2010F5 421 BT » &
BAZNORERBIETL - £ K
LA T BB B A M T80 e 2R 28, DR MLoh
BMERREREE N AHABEIER
FERTEER P st 8 o

HE2013F12A3NBILEFERN &
RAFEENBREEEFENT

Number of options

BREZAE
Lapsed/

Outstanding  Exercised forfeited  Outstanding
Name or category of Exercise as at during during as at
participant Date of grant Option period'® price HK$ 01/01/2013  the year® theyear  31/12/2013
SHEENRR HEaRE TEE  R0j0/2013 RER RER  H31/12/2013
R B A e A{TERw BT e RAT 2 e KRR MRTE
Chief executive
THRER
Zuo Manlun 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 3,842,000 (1,900,000) - 1,942,000
Wby o 22/06/2014t
Directors
Ex
Zuo Xiaoping 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,923,200 (1,000,000) - 923,200
XY 22/06/2014¢
Lai Zhigiang 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,733,000 - - 1,733,000
TR 22/06/2014¢
Kong Zhaocong 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 2,308,000 (380,000) - 1,928,000
FLkEE 22/06/2014¢
Chen Guonan 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,927,000 - - 1,927,000
e 22/06/2014%
Lin Shaoguan 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,927,000 (600,000) - 1,327,000
Moz 22/06/2014%
Huang Guirong 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,927,000 (500,000) - 1,427,000
HER 22/06/2014%
Luo Jianfeng 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,927,000 (1,927,000) - -
gzl 22/06/2014¢
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) BB IR REST B ()
2. PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 2. BRAMBEBRETE(E)
(b) Outstanding options granted (Continued) (b) EREERRITENEREGE)
Number of options
BREHA
Lapsed/
Outstanding  Exercised forfeited  Outstanding
Name or category of Exercise as at during during as at
participant Date of grant® Option period'® price HK$ 01/01/2013  the year® theyear  31/12/2013
SHEENS BRE EE  Ro0203 RER RER  R3112/2013
R &t B e AT BT 18 RATE T KR MRTE
Lin Dewei 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 692,000 - - 692,000
Wik 22/06/2014%
Subtotal directors 14,364,200  (4,407,000) - 9,957,200
EE/E
Subtotal directors and
chief executive 18,206,200 (6,307,000) - 11,899,200
EERTRER NG
Employees®
==L
In aggregate 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 59,682,050  (35,822,390) (369,200 23,490,460
A 22/06/2014%
Total 77,888,250  (42,129,390) (369,200) 35,389,660
@5t
Notes: B
(@) All dates are shown in the format of day/month/year. (@)  FrRAEMMERAER B F -
(b) None of such grantees is a connected person of the Company. (b) ZEABR AW AR R EEAL -
(c) The options are exercisable from 23 June 2011 to 22 June 2014 (c) ZEWBREITAR201MFA23RE
(both days inclusive) subject to the following vesting periods: 20146 A22B (RIEEREMA) HIRHE
RIATHBEATTE -
(i) up to 25% of the options commencing on 23 June 2011; (i) BERAE 2 25% A TN AT 32011
F6H23 B RBITIE
(ii) up to 60% of the options (including the options not (ii) BB 2 60% AT (BIEIR
exercised under the limit prescribed for in the previous S5 B 55 & BT A AT 1T I A A
period) commencing on 23 June 2012; and Z FBRBREITE 2 EARKE)

AJEH2012F6 H23E#ETT{E + K&

(i) up to 100% of the options (including the options not (i) BEREREZ100% AT (BIEHR
exercised under the limit prescribed for in the previous JE Bl 55 B BT A AT 1T B AR A
periods) commencing on 23 June 2013. Z FRABRLITE 2 EARRE)

A F201346 A23 H RIT{E °

(d  The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares (d  EEBRETEABIARRRDH
immediately before the dates on which the options were DT E /R5.038 7T ©

exercised was HK$5.03.
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 31 May 2013, the name of the Company was
approved to be changed from “China Liansu Group Holdings Limited &
E BB £ AR AR 27" to “China Lesso Group Holdings Limited A
E B EFERARAT". With effect from 31 May 2013, the Registry
of Companies in the Cayman Islands approved the change of the
Company name and issued the certificate of incorporation on change of
name. The Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong issued the certificate
of registration of corporate name of non-Hong Kong company on 2
July 2013 confirming registration of the new Company’s name in Hong
Kong under Part X| of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”,
no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company
and any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

None of the directors or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates has engaged in any business that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group. The controlling Shareholder being
New Fortune and Mr. Wong Luen Hei (the “Controlling Shareholder”), has
entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Group dated 14 May
2010 (the "Deed of Non-Competition”).

The directors are of the view that the Group’s measures adopted by the
Company in respect of the enforceability of the Deed of Non-Competition are
adequate to safeguard the effectiveness of the non-competition undertakings.
The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the compliance of
the Deed of Non-Competition, including any potential conflicts of interest
and competition arising from the taking up by the Controlling Shareholder of
opportunities rejected by the Group pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition.
Based on the confirmation from the Controlling Shareholder, the independent
non-executive directors are of the view that the Deed of Non-Competition has
been complied with and has been effectively enforced.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group's charitable donations were approximately
RMB350,000 (2012: RMB478,000).

SENIOR NOTES

As at 31 December 2013, the outstanding principal amount of the
Senior Notes was US$258,880,000. The Company intended to use the
net proceeds for financing of the then existing indebtedness, for capital
expenditures and for other general corporate purposes. The details of
the Senior Notes are set out in note 23 to financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company or any of its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s
listed securities.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreements to acquire 100% equity interests in Guangdong Lesso
Valve Co., Ltd.* (“Lesso Valve"), Anhui Lesso Chiao Yue New
Construction Material Co., Ltd.*, Guangdong Lesso O'Conn Fire
Service Equipment Co., Ltd.*, Guangdong Lesso Shun An Fire Service
Equipment Co., Ltd.* and Foshan Nanhai Eago Sanitary Ware Co.,
Ltd.* at a total consideration of RMB286,149,000. The acquisitions
allow the Group to expand its production lines on the valve supply for
the Group’s water supply-related pipe projects and on the other home
building material products. The details of the acquisition of subsidiaries
are set out in note 29 to financial statements.

The acquisition of Lesso Valve is a connected transaction and disclosed
in the Directors’ Report on page 51.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD AND
DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18
AND 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 3 March 2014, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) in relation to a syndicated
term loan facility in the amount of US$135,000,000 at an interest rate
of LIBOR plus 2.00% per annum with, among others, Taipei Fubon
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. and CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. as mandated
lead arrangers, and a syndicate of nine lenders, for the purpose of
refinancing the Group's existing financial indebtedness. The loan made
thereunder is repayable 36 months after the same has been made.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it is required that (i) Mr. Wong
Luen Hei (being the controlling Shareholder) and his family (collectively,
the "Wong Family"”) shall collectively maintain, directly or indirectly, at
least 55% of beneficial shareholding interest in the issued share capital
of the Company, carrying at least 55% of the voting rights, free from
any security; and (i) the Wong Family shall remain to have effective
management control over the Company. Otherwise, a lender shall not
be obliged to fund the loan made under the Facility Agreement, and the
total commitments under the Facility Agreement may be liable to be
cancelled and the outstanding loan with interest and all other amounts
accrued under the Facility Agreement or other related financial
documents may be due and payable to the lenders immediately.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 33 to financial
statements also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules and
satisfied relevant disclosure requirements thereof. Details of such non-
exempt connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
are summarised below:

(A) RENTAL AND UTILITIES EXPENSES

On 27 April 2012, Guangdong Lesso
Technology (the “Lessee”) entered into
lease agreement (the “Lease”) with
Guangdong Liansu Machinery (the “Lessor”)
whereby the Lessor leased its certain plants
erected on Lot G03-2-1, Daba Industrial
Estate of Longjiang Community Residents’
Committee, Longjiang Town, Shunde
District, Foshan City, the PRC to the Group
for using as production facilities.

Background:
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(A)

RENTAL AND UTILITIES EXPENSES (Continued)

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

Annual Cap:

Total consideration
for the year:

Under the Lease, the Lessee shall bear all
the third party costs, including electricity
and water charges. Since the related
utilities costs are charged by the relevant
government authorities on the Lessor,
the Lessee will reimburse the Lessor for
the same amount of utilities costs paid by
the Lessor (the “Utilities Arrangement”).
For further details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on 27
April 2012.

Particulars of the agreements together with
the total consideration for the year ended
31 December 2013 are disclosed below as
required under the Listing Rules:

Rental expenses paid to the Lessor.

Reimbursement of utilities costs charged by
the relevant government authorities on the
Lessor from the Lessee.

The Lease is for 32 months commencing on
1 May 2012 and expiring on 31 December
2014. The related rents payable by the
Lessee to the Lessor is RMB276,300 per
month.

The reimbursable amount of utilities costs
was equal to the amount charged by the
relevant government authorities on the
Lessor.

RMB3.3 million (Leasing agreement)
RMB15.0 million (Utilities agreement)

RMB3.3 million (Leasing agreement)
RMBB6.7 million (Utilities agreement)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(B)

(C)

50

PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT FOR PLASTIC PIPE

MANUFACTURING

Background:

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

Annual Cap:

Total consideration
for the year:

On 31 December 2012, the Company
entered into a framework equipment
purchase agreement (the “Framework
Agreement”) with Guangdong Liansu
Machinery for 1 year commencing on 1
January 2013 and ending on 31 December
2013.

Particulars of the Framework Agreement
together with the total consideration for the
year ended 31 December 2013 are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rules:

Purchase of equipment for plastic pipe
manufacturing from Guangdong Liansu
Machinery.

The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed the
prevailing market price.

RMB97.5 million

RMB75.2 million

PURCHASE OF ELECTRONIC ACCESSORIES

Background:

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

Annual Cap:

Total consideration
for the year:

On 31 December 2012, the Company entered
in to the original design manufacturing (the
"ODM") co-operation agreement with
Guangdong Liansu Electric in relation to the
ODM production co-operation as regards
manufacturing of electronic accessories by
Guangdong Liansu Electric for the Group
commencing from 1 January 2013 and ending
on 31 December 2013. For details, please refer
to the announcement made by the Company on
31 December 2012.

Particulars of the agreement are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rules:

Purchase of electronic accessories from
Guangdong Liansu Electric.

The purchase price to be agreed between the
parties which shall not exceed the prevailing
market price.

RMB30.0 million

RMB4.1 million
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(D)

(E)

ACQUISITION OF LESSO VALUE

On 15 January 2013, Liansu Group Company Limited entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with Star Excel Investment
Limited (“Star Excel”) to acquire 100% equity interests in
Lesso Valve at a cash consideration of RMB116,000,000. Star
Excel is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei.
Lesso Valve is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of valve products. The acquisition allows the Group to expand
its production lines on the valve supply for the Group’s water
supply-related pipe projects.

The acquisition of Lesso Valve is a connected transaction and the
principal terms of this acquisition have been set out in detail in
the Company’s announcement dated 15 January 2013.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(i)  Purchase of Equipment for Plastic Pipe Manufacturing
Background: On 31 December 2013, the Company
entered into a framework equipment
purchase agreement (the “Framework
Agreement”) with Guangdong Liansu
Machinery for 1 year commencing from 1
January 2014 and ending on 31 December
2014. For details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on
31 December 2013.

Particulars of the Framework Agreement
are disclosed below as required under the
Listing Rules:
Nature of transactions: ~ Purchase of equipment for plastic pipe
manufacturing from Guangdong Liansu

Machinery.

Terms: The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed the
prevailing market price.

Annual Cap: RMB97.5 million (for the year ending 31

December 2014)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(E)

52

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Continued)
(ii) Purchase of Electronic Accessories

Background: On 31 December 2013, the Company
entered into the original design
manufacturing (the "ODM") co-operation
agreement with Guangdong Liansu
Electric in relation to the ODM production
co-operation as regards manufacturing
of electronic accessories by Guangdong
Liansu Electric for the Group commencing
from 1 January 2014 and ending on 31
December 2014. For details, please
refer to the announcement made by the
Company on 31 December 2013.

Particulars of the agreement are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rules:

Purchase of electronic accessories from
Guangdong Liansu Electric.

Nature of transactions:

Terms: The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed the
prevailing market price.

Annual Cap: RMB30 million (for the year ending 31

December 2014)

The independent non-executive directors have, for the purpose
of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, reviewed all continuing
connected transactions and have confirmed that all continuing
connected transactions have been entered into by the Group (i)
in the ordinary and usual course of its business; (i) on normal
commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance with the terms of
the agreements governing such transactions that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The Company's auditor issued
an unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the transactions disclosed above in accordance with
Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy
of the said letter to the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 33 to
financial statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company's securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information obtained by the Company
and to the best knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the public float stipulated in the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zuo Manlun
Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 17 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT
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To the shareholders of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Formerly known as “China Liansu Group Holdings Limited")
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Lesso Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as “China Liansu
Group Holdings Limited” and the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 142, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'" REPORT (Continued)
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’'s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

17 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

re B M EM R E NS

Year ended 31 December 2013

HZE2013F12A31HLFE
2013 2012
2013F 20124
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR%T R ARBFT
REVENUE WA 5 13,070,547 10,891,363
Cost of sales SHER AR (9,804,979) (8,242,055)
Gross profit EH| 3,265,568 2,649,308
Other revenue, income and gains HUWA -~ et R AIE 5 155,475 115,774
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAY (722,790) (543,681)
Administrative expenses 1TE RS (503,959) (381,037)
Other expenses Hinp Y (276,170) (212,169)
Finance costs BERA 6 (151,003) (146,231)
Share of profit of a joint venture DME—HEERERT 15 390 315
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREBEADEF 1 1,767,511 1,482,279
Income tax expense FriSfiFY 9 (329,895) (251,008)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRF 1,437,616 1,231,271
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hir2mEbksE
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HgrgeeamEas
profit or loss: BamAIEE
Available-for-sale investments: AEHERE
Changes in fair value NEEEH - 34732
Reclassification adjustments for gains on HERTSFIZE
disposal EFEEAE - (14,710)
- 20,022
Exchange differences on translation of foreign WEINERRELN
operations MEHZERE 6,260 (2,191)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHEYEAR SR HE 2 E U 6,260 17,831
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHEYEAR FRZHEKZLE 1,443,876 1,249,102
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR

LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

IR EnS E e Al IE )

Year ended 31 December 2013

HZ2013F12A31HILEFE
2013 2012
2013F 20126
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fitE AR¥T T AREFT
Profit attributable to: AT R
Owners of the Company PA/NSIETYEDN 1,449,261 1,238,322
Non-controlling interests IR (11,645) (7,051)
1,437,616 1,231,271
Total comprehensive income attributable to: AT G2 E R AE7E
Owners of the Company KREEAAN 1,455,556 1,255,835
Non-controlling interests e IR (11,680) (6,733)
1,443,876 1,249,102
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AAFEEA
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ELERER n
Basic B=iN RMB0.48 RMB0.41
AR¥0.487T AREEOMTT
Diluted e RMB0.47 RMB0.40
AR¥0477T ARHE0407T

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 10

to the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARE ISR
31 December 2013
®2013F12A31H

2013 2012
2013F 20124
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR¥T T ARBFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 12 4,452,109 3,288,261
Prepaid land lease payments B LS 13 996,690 954,279
Other intangible assets Hib\EREE 33,927 9,771
Deposits paid for the purchase of land, BE+ - ¥ BER
property, plant and equipment REAZ RS 169,870 129,705
Interest in a joint venture R—fE& & hERER 15 5,676 5,286
Held-to-maturity investments BEEREKRE 16 231,650 279,006
Deferred tax assets RIEFIBEE 24 9,162 3,575
Total non-current assets NP EEBTE 5,899,084 4,669,883
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE8 17 2,434,049 1,766,133
Trade and bills receivables B oRKFIERER 18 1,037,629 1,009,534
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B - e REMERGIE 19 720,352 405,227
Held-to-maturity investments BERRERE 16 17,351 9,684
Cash and bank deposits e RFTER 20 2,189,242 1,922,325
Total current assets MV EEBEE 6,398,623 5,112,903
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREBaE
Trade and bills payables BIRNFELEE 21 861,416 512,054
Other payables and accruals Hib R ZIE R ETE R 2 1,252,674 832,388
Bank loans and other borrowings SRITEFR M E M ER 23 1,080,092 595,799
Tax payable PEARIE 103,638 98,635
Total current liabilities MEEEBRE 3,297,820 2,038,876
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERH 3,100,803 3,074,027
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEAERRDEE 8,999,887 7,743910
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES *RBaE
Bank loans and other borrowings RITEF R EH AR 23 1,607,024 1,628,783
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFHIEEE 24 78418 64,635
Deferred income REW e 25 58,502 22,574
Total non-current liabilities FERENAEBE 1,743,944 1,715,992
Net assets BETR 7,255,943 6,027,918
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

REMBIRRE @
31 December 2013
®2013F12A31H

2013 2012
20135 20126
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
fitE AR¥T T AREFT
EQUITY R
Issued capital BRI 26 134,316 132,660
Reserves (L 21(A) 7,105,422 5,877,373
Equity attributable to owners of the Company NN TR AJERRERS 7,239,738 6,010,033
Non-controlling interests eSS 16,205 17,885
Total equity B 7,255,943 6,027,918
Wong Luen Hei Luo Jianfeng
HHE ERIE
Director Director
2 EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o A il L et R =

Year ended 31 December 2013

#ZE2013F12A31BIEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
VNP
Available-
for-sale
investment
Share revaluation  Exchange
Issued option reserve  fluctuation Non-
capital Share Statutory Capital reserve Merger — AtHE reserve Retained controlling Total
%7 pemum  reseve?  reserved) FEfE reserve  REER  ERRD profits Total  interests equity
R RDEE EEREY  AAEEY BE  AhER 5 fE  RREN G FNER  EREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARETL ARETr ARETR ARETr ARETR ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2012 201251818 131537 1,683,990 12962 31,645 12404 5515 (20022) 20,59 2,648,349 4986975 390 4987365
Profitfor the year ERET - - - - - - - SR 133 (o) 1B
Other comprehensive income ~ E/EH,
for the year 2EME - - - - - - 20022 (2,509) - 17513 318 17831
Total comprehensive income FR2ERS
for the year Et - - - - - - 20022 (2509) 1238322 1,255,835 (6733) 1,249,102
Issue of shares Bkt 113 4,251 - - (24.369) - - - - 40805 - 40805
Capital contrioutions from iR
non-controling interests HE - - - - - - - - - - 128 128
Equity-settled share option IREEER
amangements BERERH - - - - N5 - - - - 0252 - 2025
Dividends recognised as TERAEBA
distributions to owners ARARE
(note 10) (Fs10) - - - - - - - - (293834) (293,834) - 293834)
Appropriation to statutory BRTEE
reserve 1 - - 133567 - - - - - (133,567) - - -
At31 December 2012 20126124318
and 1 January 2013 R2013F1A18 132,660 1,748,241 546,529 31,645 68,087 5515 -+ 18086 34592100 6,010,033 17885 6027918
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - - - 1,449,261 1,449,261 (11645) 1437616
Other comprehensive income £/ EH;
for the year 2EME - - - - - - - 6,295 - 6,29 36) 6,260
Total comprehensive income. A2 ENE
for the year et - - - - - - - 6,299 1,449,261 1,455,556 (11680 1443876
Issue of shares Rkkin 1,65 %39 - - (36,845) - - - - 60,201 - 60201
Capital contributions from IS
non-controlling interests HE - - - - - - - - - - 10,000 10,000
Equity-settled share option IR E
arrangements BRER S - - - - 5,757 - - - - 5751 - 5,751
Dividends recognised as BREREAA
distributions to owners PRARE
(note 10) (Rtz10) - - - - - - - - (mg (1809) - (e
Appropriation to statutory ErEyyd
resenve E1 - - 183,759 - - - - - (183,759) - - -
At 31 December 2013 20135124318 134,316 1843631 130,288 31,645 36999 5515 4 H3B 4432%F 1239738 16,205 1255983

# These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB7,105,422,000 (2012: # ZERBREENGAVUBRAXRPHEBEARE
RMB5,877,373,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 7,105,422,000 7t (20124 : A R ¥ 5,877,373,000
JT) ©
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reEnEBR e

Year ended 31 December 2013

HE2013F12A31ALFE
Notes: FitsE -
(a) In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, each of the Company’s (a)

subsidiaries registered in the PRC is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses) determined
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC to
the statutory reserve until the balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of
its registered capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior
years' losses or to increase capital, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory reserve is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

(b) Capital reserve mainly represented the difference between the consideration (b)
and the book value of the share of the net assets acquired in respect of the
acquisition of non-controlling interests.

BEPERRE - ARARHEEMHSHITELR
AEBRETEARE I RAUEENFREERREL
a F (MR E BT FEEREZ) 810% = EFE R
o EERESEREDEZMEARN0% ML -
EE BB RN EEBEFREERIEE  HETH
BB T EBRTRIREMAELRN25% -

AR EERBRIEIHR R E R B RGP
iR R A EREE MMZER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

~ =
,\\/\ E/%\//ﬁi

Year ended 31 December 2013

#ZE2013F12A31BIEFE
2013 2012
2013F 2126
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FiEE AR¥T T ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KT
Profit before tax: [ﬁﬁ}‘i’#}ﬁ{liﬁlj 1,767,511 1,482,279
Adjustments for: FATSIEEDAE
Government grants released ERARBTHED (1,031) (1,028)
Interestincome B 5 (70,586) (52,516)
Gain on early redemption of held-to-maturity IR R R O3 =3I H
investments REMEH=E 5 (2.864) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEE
investments REMEH= 5 = (14710)
Gain on repurchase of the Senior Notes BRELAZEON = 5 = (4,259)
Dividend income IR S 5 = (432)
Finance costs BB 6 151,003 146,231
Depreciation and amortisation e R is 7 360,338 252,574
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of land, HETi EMEREE
other intangible assets, property, %% e
plant and equipment B (), EE 7 (5,776) 120
Gain from a bargain purchase SEREREH R 7 (157) -
Equity-settled share option expense PR S R B IR R 7 5,757 20,252
Write-down/(write-back) of inventories to s (BEEFER
net realisable value AERFE 7 9,848 (488)
Impairment of trade receivables, net L S EWGEREFE 7 22,145 9,921
Share of profit of a joint venture HME—HEEERERF 15 (390) (315)
2,235,798 1,837,629
Increase in inventories FEEm (578,374) (463,165)
Increase in trade and bills receivables & 5 W KR E RN (84,740) (211,371)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BER - ReRk
other receivables oA FEUGRIE S 1N (263,510) (20942)
Increase in trade and bills payables EL) R NEES 313,870 316,284
Increase in other payables and accruals EMFEH;’”IE&E%E'JFE’EWW 131,803 137,338
Increase in deferred income EIEUESIE N 36,959 -
Cash generated from operations REELNES 1,791,806 1,535,773
Bank interest received BEUERTTHIE 19333 34,128
Corporate income tax paid [RANK=ESEIEE fR (307,677) (289,457)
Net cash flows from operating activities KA EBFSRERE TR 1,503,462 1,280,444
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

2 ATE A = .
SGERERERW®)

Year ended 31 December 2013

#ZE2013F12A31BIEFE
2013 2012
2013F 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FiE AR¥T T ARETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE BER
equipment REHEE (1,161,586) (1,067,866)
Proceeds from disposal of items of land, KEHEL  EEREE
other intangible assets, property, WE - BERSEEERN
plant and equipment FiS5UE 29,496 10,230
Additions to prepaid land lease payments TEf LA E L N (23,698) (408,733)
Additions to other intangible assets Hib R EELEM (28,697) (8,318)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEMEEERENRAT N
investments, net of expenses FriszE - 191,240
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments BERBBERIERE (6.362) (285,250)
Proceeds from maturity of held-to-maturity BHEEE R ERIH
investments FT33UE 9324 -
Proceeds from early redemption of held-to- WIRREOEER
maturity investments B|EMR B F1S R 39813 -
Interest received from held-to-maturity Bl EREIRE
investments RIFE 36,544 6,656
Dividends received BHARE = 432
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WM B AR 29 (264,106) (38,885)
Placement of time deposits with original maturity & H377.2% ([R5 HAR
over three months BB={EA) (16,957) -
Increase in restricted cash XRS50 (333,962) (333,453)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEHMARLREFHE (1,720,191) (1,933,947)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEED
New bank loans raised FILIRITER 892,951 662,165
Repayment of bank loans BERITEN (388,202) (109,390)
Repurchase of the Senior Notes BEELEE = (56,102)
Proceeds from issue of shares, net of expenses BTG B AT e e 60,201 40,805
Capital contributions from non-controlling eI RS
interests HE 10,000 24,228
Interest paid BRFIE (142,756) (141,964)
Dividends paid BRRE (291,809) (293,834)
Net cash flows from financing activities BEEDEHEREFE 140,385 125,908
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND REeRELEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS R RE (76,344) (527,595)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUHEE R
of the year ReEED 1,587,183 2,114,952
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net GNEETE R B R S LR AR (7,658) (174)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FERPAELR
THE YEAR REZEY 1,503,181 1,587,183
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERREZEYH
CASH EQUIVALENTS EERD
Cash and bank balances e MRITEH 20 1,468,067 757,247
Time deposits with original maturity of less than £ Ei77 50 (R A 2R
three months DR=MER) 20 35,114 829,936
1,503,181 1,587,183
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

INCIED SOy
31 December 2013
®2013F12A31H

2013 2012
2013F 20124
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FitsE ARETRT ARBFT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIBARIKIRE 14 2,573,295 2,639,340
Loans to a subsidiary m—EHBARER 14 1,357,141 1,365,118
Total non-current assets NP EEBTE 3,931,036 4,004,458
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables TR - e RE A ENRIE 5112 3217
Cash and bank deposits Be RIRITHER 20 337,413 57,509
Total current assets B EEBEE 343,185 60,726
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBaE
Other payables and accruals Hith eI IE R ERH B 17,514 18,564
Bank loans and other borrowings RITEF R E AR 23 496,164 291,906
Total current liabilities MEBEEE 513678 310,470
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEETHE (170,493) (249,744)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEEABERARBEE 3,760,543 3,754,714
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FABAR
Bank loans and other borrowings RITEF R HAMER 23 1,545,824 1,585,910
Net assets BETE 2214119 2,168,804
EQUITY %
Issued capital [REHEN 26 134,316 132,660
Reserves 527 21(B) 2,080,403 2,036,144
Total equity B 2214119 2,168,804

Wong Luen Hei Luo Jianfeng

HEE EEE

Director Director

2 2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT R i vt

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The addresses of its registered office and
principal places of business are disclosed in the section headed
"Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2013 and the approval
from the Registry of Companies in the Cayman Islands, the
name of the Company was changed from “China Liansu Group
Holdings Limited fIEBZBEFIZRAR A A]" to “China Lesso
Group Holdings Limited FF E BB EHITRR AR A R)".

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars of
the Company’s principal subsidiaries and its joint venture are set
out in notes 37 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company's ultimate holding
company is New Fortune, a limited liability company incorporated
in the BVI.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared on a historical cost convention. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2013. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

2.1

NG

ARBR—ERASEEEMRINERA
A M EE R T 2E N AF
B RRER B -

RIEARRER201365 A31 HRITHRFE
FRE LBBRIRARRRASHS ARG
Mt - AN ATz &A China Liansu
Group Holdings Limited A E BB £ H1E
AR AR E M Al China Lesso Group
Holdings Limited F EB 2 £ EZRAR L
Al e

NARA—EHREER AR - ARAEBH
BRRRESEDCENFBD BIEN ISR
KEFTF37 15 o

EERR ARANKKIERRRATE
B ERNEBERRBEEMKIMNER

AR ¢
mEEE

HZEM BRI O RIBRB B GTERGEM
MBEBMBHREER ([ FEPBHHREER D
(BREMBEEMBREED HBEFE
QBB G ERDRRE)  BEARE
FTRBIRBRBRRUEPINKER ERH - &
FUBREIBELRAERE - ZEFHMHR
RIVAAREZS - BrRBEBIN - FREE
EURBREREON TR

mEE%E

GAMBHRERBEARARENBAREE
2013F 12 A31 B I FEMIIEHRE - B
N RN F R Ty L8 AR B AE R AR 5 B
BRA— B ST ERRE - B ARMZE
BEREAEERSERIEE ARG AR - I
BESRASANREESZITHIREIEZERALE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS TRR M T )

31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

2.1

2.2

66

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs

for the first time for the current year's consolidated financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 - Government
Loans

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12 - Transition Guidance

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited BB EEIZRAER AT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

sk MYt o)
31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKAS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 1 — Presentation of
[tems of Other Comprehensive Income

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

2009 - 2011 Cycle issued in June 2012

Except as described below, the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in
these financial statements.

22 ST HERIRESZESE (@)

B GEAEA BRGIEAE RS
IR SRR EK
#EHZ 25
HEGRAEA ESREF
F1955(201%F)
BEGHEL BUABHZ
2755 (20114F)
B GEEA RBERFRAEED
5285 (2011 REIRE
BEERMBHREREE FARGLEBRD
Bg)-2EE0% FIREA
FENE 012F6 A B A5 E
200920115 HBHEER %
TBIEET

BT AN - RAFERAZ S R
BRI BB MG LG AR BE
BRI B R R &S 8GR AR B 7
BRZEBUBREIFAEAZE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS TRR M T )

31 December 2013
201312 A31H

2.2

68

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 - PRESENTATION OF ITEMS OF
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology for
statement of comprehensive income and income statement.
Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a
comprehensive income” is renamed as a “statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income"” and an

“statement of

“income
statement” is renamed as a “statement of profit or loss”. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in either a single statement
or in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive
income to be grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive
income is required to be allocated on the same basis — the
amendments do not change the option to present items of
other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax. The
amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence the
statement of comprehensive income has been renamed and the
presentation of items of other comprehensive income has been
modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments to
HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PGS e EEAE)

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs 2.3 BEMAEERKEMNE BT

HZEAR|
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised RNEBEAMBRERPEHAIREEERA YD
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these AR M R E ] MAEHE ET B BT 53R
financial statements: HAERH
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* ERUHREER g A
£9%
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and  Hedge Accounting and amendments EEMBREEL WS EREEYBRE
HKAS 39 Amendments  to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39 FO% - BEUB BB BEUK
HEAZETH R RERBETH REE
BEgRER DATERIESIRET A
EKCHCEIRA
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 ERUHRERY  BEUBRELEEI0%
and HKAS 27 (2011) and HKAS 27 (2011) - Investment F10% - BEUH  BEUBRELEA
Amendments Entities’ SEAEFR B2 RESGER
BB gER B275:(2011%)
E27% (2011 F) BRIA-REERE
BEIA
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® ERUHIREED  EEEERE?
E1457
HKAS 19 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee BB L] BEGHEE195RETAR
Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans: F19REETAR E1EF— REEN
Employee Contributions? iE - ESHH
HKAS 32 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial BB LR AR GHERE2REFTA
Instruments: Presentation — EXVAACEIEN EHTA - 25-#
Offsetting Financial Assets and EHEEREHEE
Financial Liabilities
HKAS 39 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 39 - Novation En@sTEL| B @R E395E EE]
of Derivatives and Continuation of E3RERTA A—(TAETAZFER
Hedge Accounting' e i g
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies' EE(ERMBRE HE
ERREZES)
—HREE21%
Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of HKFRSs FENE 20144 1 BRI Z B
2010-2012 Cycle issued in January 20142 2010-2012F3B8  #HEEE 2B LT
Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of HKFRSs FENE 20144 1 BRI Z B
2011-2013 Cycle issued in January 20142 2011-2013F3BE  HEEA %2 IBEET

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 ERR201441 A1 B s AR 1A Y E HARE

1 1

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 2 HANK201457 A1 B AR R ia 8 FE Eif

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 3 EAR201649F1 A1 H sl AR BIAR)FE B

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption 4 HAREEEREIE AR B E - B FEA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the AREEFTHEEH N ERZETN I MBI H®
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application, BTG HMEERNFE  BEEANZS
but is not in a position to state whether these new and revised I AR ET B RS R e KA e
HKFRSs will have a significant impact on the Group's results of B R S RIS B E AT EEL
operations and financial position. EF °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS TRR M T )

31 De

cember 2013

2013412 A31H

24

70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including: (i) the contractual arrangement
with the other vote holders of the investee; (i) rights arising from
other contractual arrangements; and (iii) the Group’s voting rights
and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures is included in profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of joint ventures
is included as part of the Group's investments in joint ventures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 XESHHEHMEm)

POLICIES (continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group will perform its annual impairment test of goodwill
as at 31 December, if any. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to
those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the disposed operation and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited BB EEIZRAER AT

24 FESHBRBE@)

EBA/REE(E)
RANAHERIE - E BRI RETRIE
BIEFTE - BBASFETRENR  FF
S EARBERNE R R REER RE -
AlgFMTHETRAR - AREKR12A
JNBRETHENFERENA(WE) - B
EITRENS  EwnifEAMEESAE
EREOREERSELBNIRGELEN
ARl AEBEGMBANGESWE R B
ﬁ-_ DECETRHIR A GHEE BRI &
BNAEERRSELBNRIRNEELEN
ZEVI

ETEBHEEEEEENIReEEBMN
(REELEBEMARMAIKECREETE - &
REELBEMGREELBMAR) T URE

SRERREER - AIRZRERR - OF
REEREBENMSRERARED -

WEEBESREReELBM(HREES
BAAER) MR EMMI D ERHD HE -« Al
BRI EEBEANNE S CE T HENF
m BB AZEBNERE - £Z2F515
MTHENEE - TR S XA
BEIRSELESENNREOHRETE ©

AFPEZHE

AFEATBLEENH EANEAFRS
it A B AR (A S B (B A A
PEE - ATEHBHBREEEERS
BERHRSRAEREEEETHR(E

BXBEMHIT /RT)E*EEJE MIGHETMAF
He TERRABEMSARAEETEA
25 o BERREN A FETDERTSZ

HEREBELRBETEMBNEREER]
REMIGLEEGAKELEMNEITE) ©
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31 December 2013
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 XESHHEHMEwm)

POLICIES (continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract asset, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2013
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEEHBEHEE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES AL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETIBERT - BRAATKERABREED
BEE AT
(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person'’s (a) FERMALTHERZREKE @ Mz
family and that person HBAT
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (i) sk ERESIARER
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEBEEATE 5
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) AAREEIAEEGAFME
the Group or of a parent of the Group; TEBENXE
or %
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions b) BEATARAERATES TN EMIE
applies: %
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same (i) ZEEHAERBER S8
group; ME
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) —HEERSEBHNBZER
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary A EEE(SES —HEX
of the other entity); BAR] - MEBRARSERWE
NEZHET)
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (il ZEBEKAEEHAER—F=
same third party; TG ERE
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —HAEBRBAE=-FEEBHNEZE
other entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ ME—EBRAEZE=F
FREMBE AR
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v) ZERBABMEENE - Z
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity HFENTEAABKRERSEAK
related to the Group; EEEENEENES
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) FZEREM (a)TBFTHLA T2 H 8k
person identified in (a); and HERES : &
(vil the person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) FMa)()VEPT A THZBERE
influence over the entity or is a member of the key EAVESBZER(NZER
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent MERARETEERERKE -

of the entity).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

2.3% t0 5%
9% t0 19%

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles

Leasehold improvements

9.56% 10 32.3%

9.56% 10 32.3%

Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit
or loss in the period the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2013
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 XESHHEHMEwm)

POLICIES (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings and other assets
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost represents the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of five years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

OPERATING LEASES

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased
by the Group under operating leases are included in non-current
assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 XESHHEHMEwm)

POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that
a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 XESHEHMEm)

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to profit or loss.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
and bank loans and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, bank loans and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
demand and term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 XESHHEHMEm)

POLICIES (continued)

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the period that the costs, which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual installments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 XESHHEHMEm)

POLICIES (continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) revenue from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b)  contract revenue from the construction contracts on the
percentage of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy “Construction contracts” below.

(c)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials,
the costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed construction overheads.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, contract revenue from a fixed price construction
contract is recognised on the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the proportion of contract costs
incurred for work performed to date relative to the estimated
total cost of the relevant contract, except where this would
not be representative of the stage of completion. Variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the
extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS (Continued)

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent
of contract costs incurred that is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is treated as amounts due from customers for contract work.
Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date
plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
treated as amounts due to customers for contract work.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension schemes

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the
Group's employees participate in various defined contribution
plans and state-management retirement benefit plans in Asia
and North America. Payments to these plans, where the Group's
obligations under them are equivalent to a defined contribution
plan, are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Share option schemes

The Company adopted two share option schemes. The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of options is recognised as an expense and credited to share
option reserve under equity. For grant of share options, the total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options at the date on which
they are granted by using a binomial model, excluding the impact
of any service condition and non-market vesting conditions. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to become vested.
From the perspective of the Company, the Company grants
the share options to its subsidiaries’ employees to exchange
for their services provided to the subsidiaries. Accordingly,
in the Company's statement of financial position, the equity-
settled share option expenses, which are recognised in the
Group's profit or loss, are treated as part of the “investments in
subsidiaries”.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 XESHHEHMEwm)

POLICIES (continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Share option schemes (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the Group's profit or loss and in
the Company’s “investments in subsidiaries”, and makes a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting
period. When the options are exercised, the proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to
share capital (at nominal value) and share premium.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from
equity when they are declared and approved by the Company's
shareholders in general meetings. Interim dividends are deducted
from equity when they are declared and approved, and no longer
at the discretion of the Company.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company’s functional currency is HK dollar while the
Company's presentation currency for the financial statements is
Renminbi. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the HK dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into HK dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PGS e EEAE)

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

JUDGEMENT

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for
income tax and withholding tax that would be payable on certain
profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC to be repatriated and
distributed by way of dividends as the directors consider that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences can be
controlled and such temporary differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

If these undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in the PRC
are considered to be repatriated and distributed by way of
dividends, the deferred income tax charge and deferred income
tax liability would have been increased by the same amount of
approximately RMB163,301,000 (2012: RMB115,186,000).

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group's provision policy for doubtful debts is based on
the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and ageing analysis
of the outstanding receivables and on the management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of the Group's customers
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional impairment may be required. As at 31
December 2013, impairment losses of RMB34,930,000 (2012:
RMB13,085,000) have been recognised for trade receivables.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS TRR M T )

31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision for obsolete inventories

The Group reviews the aged analysis of its inventories at the
end of each reporting period, and makes provision for obsolete
and slow moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for sale. The Group estimates the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. As at 31 December 2013, inventory
of RMB48,663,000 was measured at net realisable value (where
lower than cost) (2012: Nil).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
plastic pipes and pipe fittings. For management purposes, the
Group’s businesses are organised by geographical area based on
the location of the customers and assets are attributable to the
geographical unit based on the location of the assets. The Group
has eight reportable operating segments as follows:

(i) Southern China, including Guangdong Province, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hunan Province, Fujian
Province and Hainan Province;

(i) Southwestern China, including Chongging Municipality,
Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province and
Xizang (Tibet) Autonomous Region;

(i) Central China, including Hubei Province, Jiangxi Province
and Henan Province;

(iv)  Eastern China, including Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu
Province, Zhejiang Province and Anhui Province;

(v)  Northern China, including Beijing Municipality, Tianjin
Municipality, Hebei Province, Shandong Province, Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region and Shanxi Province;

(vi)  Northwestern China, including Shaanxi Province, Ningxia

Hui Autonomous Region, Qinghai Province, Gansu Province
and Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PGS e EEAE)

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(vi)  Northeastern China, including Liaoning Province, Jilin
Province and Heilongjiang Province; and

(viii)  Outside China.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a
measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax
except that exchange differences, finance costs, interest income,
gain on early redemption of held-to-maturity investments, gain
on disposal of available-for-sale investments, gain on repurchase
of the Senior Notes, share of result of a joint venture and other
unallocated income and expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude interest in a joint venture, held-to-
maturity investments, deferred tax assets, cash and bank
deposits and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is derived from its
operations both in the PRC and foreign countries.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no revenue
from transactions with a single external customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group's total revenue.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
TR R FT 5 ()

31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. K&5IER @

(Continued)
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR BZE2013F12A3MB L EENLE S HE
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 ¥l
Southern  Southwestem Central Eastern Northern  Northwestern Northeastern Qutside
China China China China China China China China  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
2F  FELE Bl B4 Bt FIME  RIME  HEEH it &4
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
Segment revenue: AHYA
Sales to external customers IREHE 1,847,960 1318881 1307612 659,740 874,806 s 303,309 m3n - 13012232
Intersegment sales AHREE 1382313 256,546 M 75,151 13646 99519 89,799 wmew  (276055) -

9230213 1575421 1700825 T34891 1010852 571,071 393,108 556310 (2760528 13012232
Revenue from construction 1844

contracts WA 58,315 - - - - - - - - 58315

Total At 9,268,568 1575421 1700825 734891 1010852 s 393,108 556,310 (2,760,525) 13070541
Segment results SHEE 2283550 363984 428642 156,513 2189 13142 06,354 9794 (472470) 3265568
Reconciliations: H%:
Exchange gain ELFIE 44009
Finance costs REMA (151,003)
Interest income ke 10586
Gainon earlyredemption o~ FEREEEEE

held-to-maturityinvestments 2R BFERS 2864
Share of profitof ajointventure~ H{G—HALAERT 0
Unallocated income and FATMER

expenses 53 (1,464903)
Proft before tax BHATER 176751
Segment assets 2HEE 5553271 TI8407 9523 597,182 512218 671,442 555901 30382 - 9,844,626
Reconciliations: i -

Interestin ajoint venture R-HAEENER 5676
Held-to-maturity investments 35523 HRE 219001
Deferred tax assets EEHREE i
Cash and bank deposits ReRETRR 218902
Total assets BEAE 12297701
Othersegmentinformation: ~~ Hp25EH

Depreciation and amortisation 7 {5 181813 3164 4o n3n B850 1318 2876 6,808 - 36033
Impairment of rade BARIGUERE

receivables, net ekl 12,750 - (369) - 8180 - - 1574 - 2,145
Write-down of inventoriesto i/ &%

et realisable value ERTE 9591 - - - - - - % - 9848
Capital expenditure? BARR 1,016,603 126297 148415 150892 68,283 64057 02554 116m (16910) 1,617,862

# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and # BRRZBEREYE  BEK&E - BH
equipment, prepaid land lease payments and other intangible assets. T ERREMBEREE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TG ERR M 5F (4)

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR BZE2012F12B31B L FENRE S BE

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 #
Southern Central Outside
China China China ~ Eiminations  Consolidated
E] B RS g e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NREFTR ARETT ARBTT  ARETT ARETR
Seqment revenue: ABRA
Sales to external customers  SNFREHE 6,381,666 10354719 141432 - 10891363
Intersegment sales PERHHEE 968,970 262610 121516 (1914037) -
Total it 7850636 1,298,089 268948 (1,914031) 10891363
Segment results PuEE 1,921,068 35778 39399 (363,623) 2,649,308
Reconciliations: 4
Exchange oss ERER (i
Finance costs RERK (146231)
Interestincome FledE 52516
Gain on disposal of available-  HETHHE
for-sale investments REMGHE 70
Gain on repurchase of BERARED
the Senior Notes Fl 4259
Share of profitof ajoint venture 25 —FIASREHT ¥
Unallocatedincomeand ~ AAEUER
expenses 5 1,091,980)
Profit hefore tax EyiENal 148,279
Segment assets PHEE 4086718 833473 1741 - 1562910
Reconciliations: 4
Iterestinajontventure  A-FALLEHER 5286
Held-to-maturity investments 5 Z5|H5E 288,690
Deferred tax assets EEnEeE 3o
Cash and bank deposits BERETHR 192232
Total assets EEER 9,782,786
Other segment information: ~ EL 3 S&H :
Depreciation and amortisation 7% i3 118,563 3,253 3919 - 5T
Impairment of trade BoRMEE
receivables, net HEFE 9250 il - - 9921
Write-back of inventoriestoe BB EZ
net realisable value EEEE (488) - - - (488)
Capital expenditure’ EXHR 959435 134,853 149 (1008) 1698484
# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and # BARAIBENEYE  BEIKZE - B
equipment, prepaid land lease payments and other intangible assets. T ERREMEREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7SR M 5 )
31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME 5.

AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns
and trade discounts (net of value-added tax, if any), and an
appropriate proportion of contract revenue from construction
contracts during the year.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other revenue, income and
gains is as follows:

WA~ B A ~ Wi R A&

WATABASEREXE  ERNFARER
mHEREEFR - KHRERERE ST
(RINFBER(WE)) - RIBREHNZAH
WAHEE R

REBERUA - B - Wz R A=A D
Mo

2013 2012
213F 20124F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Revenue WA
Sale of goods HEEM 13,012,232 10,891,363
Revenue from construction contracts TRAHKA 58,315 -
13,070,547 10,891,363
Other revenue, income and gains HAWA ~ Bk R Fla
Bank interestincome RITH B U ES 23,067 34,128
Interest income from held-to-maturity investments HEER B AT B 41519 18,388
Total interest income 7 Sz ez 70,586 52,516
Government grants and subsidies AT B e R Bh 20,769 25,617
Gain on early redemption of held-to-maturity WIREEREFERRERE
investments FriSfz 2,864 -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HeEmHEEREREHE - 14,110
Gain on repurchase of the Senior Notes EBRELAREOT = - 4,259
Dividend income iR Bz - 432
Exchange gain P& 5 A% 44,009 -
QOthers Hith 17,247 18,240
155,475 115,774

Government grants and subsidies represented funding received
from government authorities to support certain of the Group’s
research and development activities. There are no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies related to these grants and subsidies.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

LUpU e EC

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

6. FINANCE COSTS

6. BERA

2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T

Interest on: AT EIEMFE
Bank loans BITEHR 16,082 10,299
The Senior Notes BEEE 134,921 135,932
151,003 146,231

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7. BRBIATER

AL BB BADE R TR, (GEA) T3

FIRBIE
2013 2012
013F 126
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BieE AR¥ETR ARETT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 9,745,014 8,242,543
Direct cost of construction work TREEMRA 50,117 -
Depreciation e 12 336,839 231,634
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments  F8(<f + #7E & g4 13 18193 13,594
Amortisation of other intangible assets HAih R & R 5,306 1,346
Total depreciation and amortisation E R e 360,338 252,574
Research and development costs* TRl A 244,202 198,455
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of land, HEL  EMEREE D -
other intangible assets, property, BE R BIER
plant and equipment #(Fz%) /B8 (5,776) 120
Gain from a bargain purchase HBUEEAE 29 (157) -
Minimum lease payments under operating 111 R4S 4T &R
leases in respect of land and buildings SERE 2231 17,098
Auditors’ remuneration SRR A 4321 4617
Employee benefit expense (including EERAFZ (AEESEHMH
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (Pf1zE8)) :
Wages and salaries TI&ERsS 465,345 346,178
Equity-settled share option expense AR S R B IR IE R S 28 5,151 20,252
Pension scheme contributions RS EIT 50,999 37,958
Staff welfare and other expenses BTRAREMAE 39,924 30,737
562,025 435,125
Write-down/(write-back) of inventoriesto  #fis, /() F &%
net realisable value AERFE 9,848 (488)
Impairment of trade receivables, net 2 S ENGORR B 18 2145 9,921
Net rental income He W= FE (2.909) (1,209)
Foreign exchange differences, net i 5 =R HE (44,009) 618
# Research and development costs and the impairment of trade # B R AR E 5 BUGRIE R EF I R8s

receivables, net are included in the “other expenses” in profit or loss.

REEARX] o

Annual Report 2013 F ¥ 95



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
TR R FT 5 ()

31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEHFMIEAOZRSHMES
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (A) EEFHMH
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant BiE FHARBIEEFEEANFIEGE161
to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong BB ENEZHIMEY T -

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2013 2012
20135 20126
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFTT
Fees e 2418 1,748
Other emoluments: oA :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Yo RMREMER 3335 3,257
Performance related bonuses FIBHMEAL 464 321
Equity-settled share option expense VAR 45 B mO BB AR B B 2 1,064 3671
Pension scheme contributions RIREEH I P 205
5104 7,454
1582 9,202
In the prior years, certain directors were granted share PRBAERE  BFESREAL T BERES
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under 2 EEnAEEIRENRGEFER
the Company’s share option scheme. The fair value of o ERBENATERETYAETE - I
such options, which has been recognised in profit or loss REFEEHIMIBRANER  MIAKRFEEE#
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of MENDBHNR L TEEHHER -

grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

sk MYt o)
31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EZEHMMEABRSEFMES

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) (&)
(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEHEN(E)
The remuneration of each of the directors for the year BEENEZE2013F12A31HIEE
ended 31 December 2013 is set out below: EMFHEHIIAT
Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances Performance  share option Pension
and benefits related expense scheme
in kind bonuses LABRFE  contributions
Fees & 28 3] =EMN BiRg Total
e REUEAN BREA BRERX g st

RMB000  RMBO000  RMBO000  RMBO000  RMBO00  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTRT ARBTRT AR®TT AR®TR

Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Wong Luen Hei BHELE - 575 152 - 12 739
Mr. Zuo Manlun Pisbiiik ke - 557 8 21 2 847
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping RS E - 575 48 128 12 763
Mr. Lai Zhigiang L e - 300 25 128 3 486
Mr. Kong Zhaocong kBB E - 300 25 128 3 486
Mr. Chen Guonan BREIR R E 20 60 % 107 45 4an
Dr. Lin Shaoquan mheEL - 668 67 107 9 851
Mr. Huang Guirong BEERE - 300 2% 107 57 489
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BEBSE 575 - 49 107 12 743
815 3335 464 1,026 | 5881
Non-executive director: FHTES :
Mr. Lin Dewei WEREE 363 - - 38 - an
Independent non-executive 3 JFH1T

directors: BE:

Dr. Bai Chongen SET=\ 260 = = = = 260
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung S 260 - - - - 260
Mr. Wong Kwaok Ho,

Jonathan TBEREE 260 - - - - 260
Mr. Cheung Man Yu RNTFEA 260 - - - - 260
Mr. Gao Lixin [SIE [yt 260 - - - - 260

1,300 - - - - 1,300
2478 3335 464 1,064 M 1,582
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
TR R FT 5 ()

31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EZEHMEAOBRSEFHMES

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) (/&)
(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EE=EFHM(E)
The remuneration of each of the directors for the year BEENEHZ=2012F12A3181EF
ended 31 December 2012 is set out below: EMFHBEII AT
Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances Performance share option Pension
and benefits related expense scheme
in kind bonuses BABREE  contributions
Fees #& 28 xKH EER ke Total
we REWESN  BHTA BRERS FEER st

RVMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETLT ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETET

Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Wong Luen Hei EHELE - 586 49 - 11 646
Mr. Zuo Manlun LR E - 585 49 736 21 1,391
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping EXHR LT - 586 49 442 11 1,088
Mr. Lai Zhigiang RS AE - 300 25 442 32 799
Mr. Kong Zhaocong kB E - 300 25 442 32 799
Mr. Chen Guonan FREIR T E - 300 25 369 32 726
Dr. Lin Shaoguan wheEt - 300 25 369 8 702
Mr. Huang Guirong BEERE - 300 25 369 47 741
Mr. Luo Jianfeng Figks 586 - 49 369 11 1,015
586 3,257 321 3,638 205 7,907
Non-executive director: FHITES :
Mr. Lin Dewei W ks 370 - - 133 - 503
Independent non-executive 3 JFH1T

directors: B
Dr. Bai Chongen SET\ 264 - - - - 264
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung SEERE 264 - - - - 264
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho,

Jonathan TEREE 264 - - - - 264
Mr. Cheung Man Yu? RN T - - - - - -
Mr. Gao Lixin* [=SVE i intasid - - - - - -

792 - - - - 792
1,748 3,257 321 3,671 205 9,202
# Appointed as independent non-executive directors on 31 # 2012612 A31 BEZ F A IEH
December 2012. TESE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PGS e EEAE)

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EZEHMMEABRSEFMES

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) (&)
(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) E=HMN(E
No director waived or agreed to waive any emolument and BMEEENEIRERETNHNE
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors MRS BN E AEE) N AR E B E
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as INEE AR E B EARER B MR E
compensation for loss of office. EXHEMBE
There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the FRABES NS ENTBLIERITE
independent non-executive directors during the year (2012: EHT A EMENE (20124 : ) o
Nil).
(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (B) EAEEHMMES
The Group's five highest paid employees during the year FN - AEERAEaTHNEEHYA
were all directors. Details of the remuneration of these B o NFRNZSEZTNMNEFEH
directors during the year are set out in note 8(A) above. A EXXHIEES(A) »
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FEBMAX
2013 2012
2013F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Current tax BIEATR IR
Hong Kong 5 2,158 2,484
PRC == 346,087 286,462
348,245 288,946
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBEREE
PRC HE (26,546) (28,437)
Deferred tax (note 24) BRI (P E24) 8196 (9,501)
Total tax charge for the year FARIALETE 329,895 251,008
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits NEBEBEGFAREBKE NTIN SR LK EHT
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of TR EERTES SRS EMiEEEE
the Group are domiciled and operate. B INFTISRL -
HONG KONG PROFITS TAX EBNEH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on EABMEH R EMERBESTSELNG
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for both HER B HE TS AR R IBES 1B (1A )%
periods, if any, after offsetting the tax loss brought forward. LARE % 16.5% & -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS TRR M T )

31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9. FISFBXZm
PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX PRI EMEH
The Group’s income tax provision in respect of its operations in REBEDRBEEZ2013F X20129F12 A31
Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax rates AIEFEMERTEF - AEBEMNIREE
on the taxable profits for the years ended 31 December 2013 2 2REBREMNABREE  IRERTRTE
and 2012, based on the existing legislation, interpretations and B A th RS TS R e
practices in respect thereof.
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax FRAARRNFRED W B AR FTE AR A
at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of MR E N EARBR R ADEN B IBRE
the Company's subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at BRI ERH R ENRIER Y EENT
the effective tax rate is as follows:
2013 2012
2013F 2126
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Profit before tax B A A 1,767,511 1,482,219
Tax atthe PRC corporate income tax rate of 25% BB EATS R E D%t BRI 4,878 370,570
Effect of tax concessions for certain subsidiaries ETHERRNTIAEENTE (158,337) (146,600)
Share of profit of a joint venture DME—EEELERF (97) (79)
Income not subject to tax BERT (16,775) (6,402)
Expenses not deductible for tax ORI 39,380 32,058
Tax losses utilised from prior years FrEn MBI FERHIEER (5,:881) (858)
Tax losses not recognised RERTIAEE 21,330 16,205
Adjustments in respect of current tax of prior years MBTFEFERBELAR (26,546) (28,437)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the distributable HARBPEME AR 2K
profits of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC BRSNS 2 34,943 14,551
Tax charge atthe Group’s effective rate BASEERDG R ENTRIES 329,895 251,008
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

10. DIVIDENDS 10. RE
2013 2012
2013F 2124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Dividends recognised as distributions during the year:  AFRIEZRAEDRAIRE,
2012 final - HK12 cents (2012: 2011 final - HK12 cents) ~ 20124F R ERA% 2 — G AR L i A%
per ordinary share 12781 (20124F = 2011 R EBRR S
—1271l) 291,809 293,834
The final dividend of HK12 cents in respect of the year ended 31 EEOREMNET2013F12A31H ILFE
December 2013 (2012: final dividend of HK12 cents in respect IR AR HA RS B AR T BA%12/810(20124F -
of the year ended 31 December 2012) per ordinary share has HZE2012F12 A3 B L FERNRGKREF
been proposed by the Board and is subject to approval by the B% AR 1278l - B R EE IR
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. HFERE EHOER - TR -

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11. AXQAREE AELEBRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based RBEATRIEAESRER R EHA)
on:
2013 2012
213F 20124
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARET T
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to owners of the Company used in SHESRERNREERNERIN
the basic and diluted earnings per share calculation 72~ 1A A JE(E 5 F 1,449,261 1,238,322
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7SR M 5 )
31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11.
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

RAREEABRLEBRERN @

Number of Shares
RDEE
2013 2012
2013F 2126
Shares B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares of the HEEHIRERNEN R
Company inissue used in the basic earnings ARRFIBETL BRI
per share calculation Fi58 3,050,089,873 3,011,875,112
Effect of dilution — weighted average number EEE — SRR INE T
of ordinary shares: share options e 38,037,067 57,300,281
3,088,126,940 3,069,175,393

The weighted average number of shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2013 includes 3,033,602,350 ordinary shares in issue as at 31
December 2012 (2012: 3,005,906,950 ordinary shares in issue as
at 31 December 2011) and 16,487,523 shares (2012: 5,968,162
shares) derived from the weighted average of 42,129,390
ordinary shares (2012: 27,695,400 ordinary shares) issued upon
the exercise of share options.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

sk MYt o)
31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. ¥ - BERSHE

Furniture,
fixtures
and office Leasehold  Construction
Land and Plantand  equipment Motor  improvements in
buildings  machinery XE > #£ER vehicles HE progress Total
THREF BERME BAERME RE MERE  HERIR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥TR AR%TR ARETT AR¥Tr AR%ETR ARETR
Cost: B
At1January 2012 R12E1 A1A 838,093 1,459,928 39,701 81,988 342 528,402 2,951,534
Additions NE 72,642 29781 14,146 21,106 3,486 598,407 1,007,598
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEREAT 54,109 1012 163 530 - 2319 58,193
Transfers R 264,992 193,693 250 695 - (459,630) -
Disposals HeE (224) (11,740) (1113) (53) - - (13,190)
Exchange realignment P AR (10) (215) 2) 1 (3) (440) (671)
At 31 December 2012 and RA2E12ANE R
1January 2013 013F151A 1,229,602 1,940,549 53,085 104,265 6,905 669,058 4,003 464
Additions RNE 114,809 306,591 15,068 14214 415 796,304 1,247,401
Acquisitions of subsidiaries A NG|
(note 29) (Pizr29) 169,265 69,908 3701 1699 - 30,503 275,076
Transfers R 453,706 96,450 5,265 3,698 - (559,079) -
Disposals HeE (5,849) (30,906 (973) (2,549) (831) (752) (41,860)
Exchange realignment B A (#12) (1,416) (#13) (3n) (346) (10) (2,908)
At 31 December 2013 20135128310 1,961.121 2,381,176 75,133 120976 6,143 936,024 5481173
Accumulated depreciation: ZHE !
At1January 2012 R A1E (106897)  (313675) (16,019) (41,393) (2,791) - (480,775)
Provided for the year KERRE (51,784) (163,516) (7,382) (14,150) (802) - (237,634)
Disposals k= 108 2,188 519 % - - 2840
Exchange realignment i 5 3 358 - 5 - - 366
At31 December 2012 and RA1FENANAK
1 January 2013 013F1A1A (158,570) (474,645) (22,882) (55,513) (359) - (715,203)
Provided for the year KERRE (88,017) (220941) (12,174) (15,356) (351) - (336,839)
Disposals HE 1,233 17541 849 2,040 831 - 22,494
Exchange realignment i 5 48 140 59 213 % - 484
At31December 2013 20135124315 (245,306) (677,905) (34,148) (68,616) (3,089) - (1,029,064)
Net carrying amount FREFHE :
At 31 December 2013 RA13E12A31H 1,115,815 1,0321 41,585 52,360 3,054 936,024 4,452,109
At31 December 2012 20125128315 1,071,032 1,465,904 30,203 48,752 3312 669,058 3,288,261
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

13. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

3. AT HER

2013 2012

2013F 2124

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

FtaE AR¥T T ARETT

At 1 January MAE 974,943 364,162

Additions AE 21114 592,976

Disposal HE (4,349) -

Acquisitions of subsidiaries Wik B AT 29 38,804 31,399

Provided for the year REER 7 (18,193) (13,594)

Carrying amount at 31 December R12A31AKIEREE 1,018,319 974,943
Current portion included in prepayments, AR He REA

deposits and other receivables JEMZIBRREN 19 (21,629) (20,664)

Amounts shown under non-current assets IERENEETE N RUE 996,690 954,279

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held HEL AN RA - AP A ER
under a medium-term lease. A e

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 14. AMIEATINREREME D

BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES AlEEER
2013 2012
2013F 2126
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBFT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - AR = -
Advances to subsidiaries Bl ENEIEEEA 2,493,185 2,561,482

Capital contribution in respect of PARR (D B AR

employee share-based compensation BREFMTE 80,110 77,858
2,573,295 2,639,340

The advances to subsidiaries of RMB2,493,185,000 (2012:
RMB2,561,482,000) included in the investments in subsidiaries
above are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

FTA_LIRFAH B A AR A M A Rl 8K
#)ARKE2,493,185,0007T(20124F : AR
#52,561,482,0007T ) AEEA - 28 R EE
TEERE -

The loans to a subsidiary of RMB1,357,741,000 (2012:
RMB1,365,118,000) are unsecured, bearing interest at 0.81%
below the applicable benchmark lending rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China and are repayable in 2016.

m—HEE AR ERARE1,357,741,000
JC(20124F + AR#¥1,365,118,0007T) A4
T ZPBRARBITAMAEANERE
R IF0.81 %515 BHEN20165FEE ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

15. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 15. RA—EEELENER
2013 2012
213F 20124
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Share of net assets DEEETFRE 5,676 5,286
Particulars of the joint venture are as follows: BEPENFBOT
Percentage of
FriEES
Place of
Registered registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital  and business interest power sharing activity
R
aE HMER EEMYE HEAER REE PEfE R FTEEK
Guangdong Lesso EPCO RMB10,000,000 PRC 50 50 50 Provision of
Residential Equipment AR #10,000,0007C H household
Design Services Co., Ltd.* decoration
BRI ERHT R design work and
FrTRBER AR maintenance
services
RURERL
AT MAEIRT
The following table illustrates the information of the Group's TREJNAEEREGEDEERHER
interest in the joint venture:
2013 2012
2013F 2126
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
Share of joint venture’'s: DMEEERE
Profit from continuing operations B R T 390 315
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 E = -
Total comprehensive income FENEBRE 390 315
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

16. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 16. HEEZEHKRE
2013 2012
213F 20124
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREFT
Listed debt securities FREBES 249,001 288,690
Less: Amounts with maturity of less than one year B RBEEETHEHA LR
shown under current assets —FHRIE (12,351) (9,684)
Amounts shown under non-current assets EREEEIE N FUE 231,650 279,006
The held-to-maturity investments represented debt securities REZINHREBRIINEBZLERSME
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. RARETMNEBRES - ZSHEFNFE
These securities carry fixed interest at 9.38% to 13.75% (2012; HE T FFELI38% E13.75% & (2012
9.00% to 13.75%) per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears, F:9.00%E13.75%) * BEFIN &
and will mature from March 2014 to April 2018 (2012: November 201453 A5 2018F4 A F| 83 (20124 ¢
2013 to April 2016). 2013F 11 AE20164F47) »
As at 31 December 2013, certain of the Group's held-to- 20135128318 » AEBEREEFES
maturity investments with an aggregate net carrying amount of AR¥242,667,0007HH T 158 E 5| HK
RMB242,667,000 (2012: Nil) were pledged to a bank to secure B (20124 « @) B RRITHEMIER R B
the banking facility granted to the Company. The Company has FIRTTREE M HELR - 7201312 H31H -
not utilised this banking facility as at 31 December 2013. AARES)BZIRITRE -
17. INVENTORIES 17. &8
2013 2012
2013F 20124
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREBFT
Raw materials EhE 1,159,341 885,211
Work in progress EER 231,976 78,784
Finished goods ER S 1,042,732 802,138
2,434,049 1,766,133
As at 31 December 2012, certain of the Group's inventories R2012F12 A31H » AEEEREFEARE
with an aggregate net carrying amount of RMB26,332,000 were B ARK26,332,000tHE TIREBHEMAE
pledged to secure the Group's bank loans. AEBRITERHERR -
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31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

18. EZRWRIERRE

2013 2012

2013F 20124

RMB'000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREFTT

Trade receivables B SN RIE 854,518 719,354
Bills receivable N R 218,041 243,265
Less: Provision for impairment o ORERE (34,930) (13,085)
1,037,629 1,009,534

The Group's major customers are independent distributors,
civil contractors, property developers, utility companies and
municipalities in Mainland China. Depending on the market
condition, marketing tactics and relationships with the customers,
the Group's trading terms with its independent distributors may
change from settlement on an advance receipt basis to giving a
credit period of generally one month or more, if appropriate. The
Group does not have a standardised and universal credit period
granted to the non-distributor customers. The credit period of an
individual non-distributor customer is considered on a case-by-
case basis and is set out in the sales contracts, as appropriate.
Sales to small, new, or short-term customers are normally
expected to be settled on an advance receipt basis or shortly
after the goods delivery. No credit period is set by the Group for
small, new and short-term customers.

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and interest-free.
An aged analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables as at

the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of provisions, is as follows:

AEENTREP STEANMNBILD H
7 EARTARAGER - BHERMER - AF
EE QR RTHER  REFERFIR - ™
55 LR PHIRER - AIASE B 0 i
B E S IERRREN T A EER AR T
—R—EARZEANERHR(MEES) -
AREEIWEA AN A E PR TIRER
SRR - ERIFD B EFNERRSE
FEBBERME - WEKERR TR (A
BE) - H/RR - REREPHEE—
RIEMABEN D AIR X EREHAEE -
AEEWEANRR - FHEREPRILE
FRAEARR

HHRUFIR R E RS REER R RS

RBERR - AEENE ZREGIBELRRE
RERAHUHRBEFROREONAOT

2013 2012

2013F 20124

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Within 3 months MEAR 609,315 632,975
4to 6 months 426{E A 284,077 179,554
7to 12 months 1212084 103,761 159,689
1to 2 years 1226 36,359 33,724
2to 3years 2E3F 3,350 2,705
Over 3 years IFL L 167 887
1,037,629 1,009,534
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18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of the Group’s
trade receivables are as follows:

18.

BESEWFERERE@m)

REEE ZRUGRIEH R E B EHHNZ BN
T

2013 2012

2013F 2126

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREFTT

At 1 January M A1E 13,085 3,309
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) ERERREEE () 2145 9,921
Amounts written off as uncollectible sE AR EIR 258 (300) (145)
At 31 December MM2A318 34,930 13,085

The above provision of RMB34,930,000 (2012: RMB13,085,000)
as at 31 December 2013 is for individually impaired trade
receivables with their carrying amount before provision of
RMB38,212,000 (2012: RMB13,085,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in
default or delinquency in payments.

The aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is

PR2013F 12 A3 B Lt BEEARE
34,930,0007T (20124 : AR#13,085,000
TU) B E 2 AIRRE(E A AR 38,212,000
JL(20124  AR#13,085,0007T ) 7 & Bl
BEE S REKGRIEED - ERREE S EK
FIEEE NSRRI TNEEER -

AEEER R AR ES TR RERER S
FEYRIA R ZB R AT AT -

as follows:

2013 2012
2013F 2126
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Neither past due nor impaired KBE T ARE 847,872 820,456

Past due but not impaired: BEH AR ARE
Less than 3 months past due EE D R3ME A 79,544 131,291
4t0 6 months past due EHAZ6(E A 35,953 17,652
710 12 months past due WHETZ12{E A 50,055 21,528
110 2 years past due BE1E2F 5870 17,571
2to 3years past due BHEDNEIF 6,053 1,036
1,034,347 1,009,534

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. EZEWFIER ZE @)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors believe
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group discounted bills receivable
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB152,084,000 to a bank
for cash proceeds of RMB148,738,000. If the bills receivable are
not paid at maturity, the bank has the right to request the Group
to pay the unsettled balance. As the Group had not transferred
the significant risks and rewards, including default risk, relating
to such bills receivable, it continued to recognise the full carrying
amount of the bills receivable and had recognised the cash
received on the transfer as a bank loan as at that date.

As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of the bills
receivable that had been transferred but had not been
derecognised and the carrying amount of the associated liability
amounted to RMB152,084,000 respectively.

These bills receivable have been fully paid at maturity dates.
As such, the Group has derecognised these discounted bills
receivable and associated liability accordingly during the year.

EA A ERENRKFIRES T BT FP
Bl WERAEENZZLHRI - RIE
PBEER  EE2RR - ARRETFEEE
ZWEBEER(L - AERDREATEK
Bl - Ft AL F A EHRE R -

2012912 A31H - AEE R —RIRTTEL
IRERME4AE A ARE152,084,000 T HIFEU
5 REMBRIEAARKE148,738,000
T o SRR EEREBE MRS - R
TERELASEB L RENSRE - BRR
SEUEEREEZSEREERNEERR
MESR(PEEERR) - AEBRZB#E
PERRARKZIENREE - WO ERAZ
HR WIS AIRTTER

R2012F12 A31H @ DEEE R RK LFE
R EREEEAEMAEAENERED
Rl A A R#152,084,0007T

ZERPWEIRCNEIH B AEAT - Bt
REBPNFEARERR LR ZZC AR EK
SEMAEAE -
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19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. FAf{ R » &R HtEWFIE
RECEIVABLES

2013 2012
213F 20124
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
FtaE AR¥T T AREFT
Prepayments b 462,623 231,262
Current portion of prepaid land lease B HEER
payments BREE 13 21,629 20,664
Value-added tax recoverable IR ER 157,359 109,581
Corporate income tax recoverable FENEEMER 4,138 13,157
Deposits e 23,718 10,953
Other receivables HAd WA 50,825 19,610
720,352 405,227
The financial assets included in the above balances are LS ENSREEERR - 28K
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. EETEERE -
20. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 20. RERIBITER
Group
TEH
2013 2012
2013F 20124
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Restricted cash: XEFHEL
Guarantee deposits for banking facilities ERBITRIEMEREZS 669,104 335,142
Time deposits with original maturity more than FHIFER
three months when acquired (REHR®BEB=EA) 16,957 -
Cash and cash equivalents: BehBeSEY:
Time deposits TEEER 35,114 829,936
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHS 1,468,067 757,241
1,503,181 1,587,183
Cash and bank deposits Be RRITFER 2,189,242 1,922,325
Denominated in RMB*# AAREEHE? 1,821,5% 1,834,254
Denominated in other currencies NEMEMEHE 367,646 88,071
2189242 1,922,325
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2013412 A31H

20. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued) 20. BERBITER @D
Company
VNG|
2013 2012
20135 20124
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTT
Restricted cash: XREIRS
Guarantee deposits for banking facilities ERBITRIENEREZS 283,043 -
Time deposits with original maturity more than TFEETFER
three months when acquired (REHR®BB=EA) 16,957 -
Cash and cash equivalents: BeMReEEY:
Time deposits TEEER 26,760 46,907
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTH S 10,653 10,602
37.413 57,509
Cash and bank deposits Be RRITFR 337,413 57,509
Denominated in RMB* AAREEGHE 300,587 9,276
Denominated in other currencies PAH b 5 #E 5 HE 36,826 48,233
337,413 57,509
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank FHRRRITHIR SR F RIRTTTER R R AT
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying B F R BEEUH B, o 52 ERTE ERTE XY EABR Y -
periods between one day and three months and earn interest at I RXEIEA TSN IR E R FTHERFIE
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances BRERFI B o $RITARER R PR HIIZR & E Ui
and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with EAfE A0 sr B2 B RIFHIRTT ©

no recent history of default.

# The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, # AR AREBAEMER R - B
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and 15 A B N 3 OB B TR R I K AR BE - S BE A
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange [EBIRIT - ANEEEE S BESEEHEITI
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other JEXFGHIRITIARKE N AR S o
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.
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31 December 2013
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21. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

21. EZENFEREE

2013 2012

2013F 20126

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT

Trade payables BSRENRIE 349,495 375,488
Bills payable ENERE 511,921 136,566
861,416 512,054

EIENFEDNRE - BSRENTFHER
HAFR A30%90H °

The trade payables are interest-free. The average credit period
for trade purchases is 30 to 90 days.

An aged analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables as at RBEHR - XEENE SENFIEREE

the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as REZAHMRESTAT
follows:

2013 2012
213F 20124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Within 3 months MEAA 350,338 483,943
410 6 months 4761E A 505,157 23520
7to 12 months 121218 A 1,299 1,542
1to 2 years 1226 3,867 2,562
2t0 3 years 253F 755 299
Over 3 years 3EMALE - 188
861,416 512,054

112  china Lesso Group Holdings Limited & 28 £ M2 3845 R 2 5



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PGS e EEAE)

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22, HitENRFIERESTEH

2013 2012
2013F 20126
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
MeE AR¥TRT ARBTT
Advances from customers BEHH 681,436 487,192
Accruals JEtER 1,420 34,688
Salaries and welfare payables JERT & RAEF| 97,112 76,926
Contingent consideration arrangement FARELH 29 1,965 -
Other payables HipfEN IR 430,141 233,582
1,252,674 832,388

The financial liabilities included in the above balances are interest- LR ENERAENEERERTEE

free and have no fixed terms of repayment. SRER

23. BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 23. fR{ITEF R HaE%

2013 2012
20135 20125
Maturity RMB'000 Maturity RMB'000
Group AEH EHA AR%T R gl =! ARETT
Current &
Secured bank loans BHEMRTER - 2013 26,332
Unsecured bank loans EIRHRITER 2014 1,080,092 2013 569,467
1,080,092 595,799
Non-current EREB
Unsecured bank loans EIIRITER 2015 61,200 2015 42,873
The Senior Notes BREE 2016 1,545,824 2016 1,585,910
1,607,024 1,628,783
2,687,116 2,224,582
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS TRR M T )

31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

23. BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 23. SR8{T7EZ N EMET @)
(Continued)
2013 2012
213F 20124
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Analysed into bank loans repayable: BEBRITEN
Within one year or on demand —FRERE R 1,080,092 595,799
Inthe second year —FR 61,200 21,437
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-FEERFN(BEEEMTF) - 21,436
1,141,292 638,672
Analysed into other borrowings repayable: BIEEEMIET :
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FZERFN(REERMF) 1,545,824 1,585,910
2,687,116 2,224,582
2013 2012
20135 20126
Maturity RMB'000 Maturity RMB'000
Company ¥ NG| Z#A AR%TR ZIEAH ARBFT
Current wRE
Unsecured bank loans EERRITER 2014 496,164 2013 291,906
Non-current FERE
The Senior Notes BEEE 2016 1,545,824 2016 1,585,910
2,041,988 1,877,816
2013 2012
2013F 2124
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBFT
Analysed into bank loans repayable: BEBRITER
Within one year or on demand —F RN B 496,164 291,906
Analysed into other borrowings repayable: BEEEMER
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-EZERFN(BEERNE) 1,545,824 1,585,910
2,041,988 1,877,816
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TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

23. BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The effective interest rates on the Group's bank loans range from 1.21%
10 6.30% (2012: 1.33% to 5.50%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's bank loans are denominated
in US dollars, HK dollars and Renminbi at aggregate amounts of
RMB507,475,000 (2012: RMB194,682,000), RMB483,708,000 (2012:
RMB291,906,000) and RMB150,109,000 (2012: RMB152,084,000),
respectively.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's secured bank loans were secured
by the pledge of the Group’s inventories with an aggregate net carrying
amount of RMB26,332,000.

The Senior Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited. They carry interest at 7.875% per annum (effective
interest rate at 8.63% per annum), payable semi-annually in arrears
on 13 May and 13 November, and will mature on 13 May 2016 unless
redeemed earlier. The Company can at its option redeem all or a portion
of the Senior Notes at any time prior to the maturity date in accordance
with the purchase agreement. For key terms of the redemption option,
please refer to the Company’s announcement on issuance of the Senior
Notes dated 8 May 2011.

The Senior Notes are guaranteed by certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries and secured by a first-priority fixed charge over the shares
of those subsidiaries providing such guarantee.

The outstanding principal amount of the Senior Notes was
US$258,880,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012: US$258,880,000).

23. SRITEFREMER@

AEBMBITERZERFNENT121%E
6.30% 1" (20124 : 1.33% £5.50%) °

MR2013F12A31H » AEBUERL - BT
RAREFENRITEREES A ABARKE
507,475,0007C(20124F : AR#194,682,000
7T) ~ AR #483,708,0007T (20124 « AR
291,906,000 70 ) & A K # 150,109,000 7T
(20124 :+ AJR#152,084,0007T) °

R2012%12A31H - AEBBEMERTE
RERERAEEREFELEAARE
26,332,0007T 2 7 & {EIKHE ©

BEAZERFTINEBZLRZHARAR L
W R BIRENRT.876% H E (BEER X
£8.63%) * WHEA13A K11 A13AFH4F
SfF - BRIERRIER - B EEMN2016F58
13AEH - ARQRAA EITREREHIAATE
ARBEIREEE HAERN 2 BT ELE
B FABREEENEZEN  S2HA
ARIR201155 A8 A BITE A Z TR

N

BRRERARFETHBRRRELIAZ
SRUERENMBRRNENRE —ELE
TEFRIA

M2013F12A310 - BARBHRERLS
#8/5258,880,0003% 7T (20124 : 258,880,000
ET) °
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31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

24. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised and their movements during the year:

Provision for

24.

impairment ~ Accelerated  Decelerated

of assets tax

fax

BEN  depreciation  depreciation
BERE NEHERE BAKENE

RMB'000 RMB'000

RMB'000

ARETE ARETR ARETR

IEFERE

AT ARFAERRNEBETHAEE,/
(BE)REE

Withholding

Fair value tax on
adjustments  distributable
arising from profits of

acquisitionof  subsidiaries
a subsidiary inthe PRC
KERBLR FEMBAR Deferred

EYNVE TARENN income Total
HE BERASH EE = st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
AEBTL  ARKTL AR®TR  ARETR

At1January 2012 RA1E1A18 511 - - (3.390) (69,263) 1,601 (70,561)
Credited/{charged) to A/ (ng)

the profitor loss for FEER

the year (note 9) (Firzt9) 1243 284 - 8 1949 (64 9501
At31 December2012and  FA012E12A318

1 January 2013 NI3E1A1H 1,754 284 - (3.301) (61,334) 1531 (61,060)
Credited/(charged)tothe £t A/(¥18)

profit or loss for FEER

the year note 9) iE2) 5,564 - (402) 18 (13567 B (8,196)
At31 December 2013 013128318 1318 24 (402) (3,115) (4.901) 1,560 (69,256)

# The amount as at 31 December 2013 represented the deferred # M2013F12A318 » 2B AARNABFHF

tax provision of RMB34,943,000 (2012: RMB14,551,000) on the
distributable profits of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC after
offsetting the realised deferred tax liabilities of RMB21,376,000 (2012:
RMB22,500,000) arising from dividends declared by these subsidiaries
to their foreign investors during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

24. EFERIE (&)

25.

2013 2012
2013F 20126
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Gross deferred tax assets recognised in R12A31 B A AR R
the consolidated statement of financial position MR BRI
at31 December BEBRE 9,162 3575
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in R12A31 B AR E BIIEARR &
the consolidated statement of financial position NEEREEL R I8
at 31 December BELE (18.8) (64,635)
(69,256) (61,060)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. The applicable rate for the Group is 5%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
their earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax liabilities of RMB163,301,000 (2012: RMB115,186,000) in
respect of temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries, amounting to RMB3,266,019,000 (2012:
RMB2,303,729,000), that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it is probable that these profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represented government grants received by the
Group as financial subsidies for its construction of new factory
premises in Changchun and Daqging and rental income received
in advance from certain of the Group's employees for leasing the
staff quarters.

The grants are released to profit or loss over the expected useful
lives of the relevant properties by equal annual installments,
while rental income received in advance is recognised on the
straight-line basis over the respective lease terms.

25.

BB B EESEE - R BRI
SNE R FEMINE IR E E S IR AR BB RN
10% HYTEIRFTS AN © 7% R E B 200841 A1
A#EAER - @MAMNB2007F 12831 BiEE
BEEF] o i Bl A ELZ /MR 18 & E P
AVEERE AR BBIEL - B RBER X
BNTEIRFTSH - iAKEME - EAME
RITEHBERE% - AL 2SR HE
Rt A S BT A B3 200845E1 A1 H REFR
BRI ROKREME - ANEBAMNE
RFTISHL o

P2013F12 A31H » @R AR A2 H
ZEWBARMBKEEE - BZFHEFA
AR R DR A A BEME TR - AR
(i A A ) /NI B NS A T
Br= 2 A5 AR 3266019000 (2012
& AR#2,303,729,0007T ) B iE JEFi 1B
BEAB(ARDRZERE &M EZH)
AR # 163,301,000 7T (2012 4F : AR
115,186,0007T) °

I SE W 2

B e A R B W T #EB) - 1E/RE
ERERKE EEN TR E 008 e
Uk BAREERETRERACKIWEESET
BEEESWA -

YR AR EFRY R A FRARFEINE
BREABRAER - MELKEBESRA
AR B WE B EARERER o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ISR MY ()
31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. IRA
2013 2012
Shares 3] 0135 20126
Authorised: EE
20,000,000,000 (2012: 20,000,000,000) ordinary shares of 20,000,000,000(20124F : 20,000,000,000) % HK$1,000,000,000 HK$1,000,000,000
HK$0.05 each SREE5E TR LR 1,000,000,0007% ¢ 1,000,000,0007 75
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:
3,075,731,740 (2012: 3,033,602,350) ordinary shares of 3,075,731,740(20124F : 3,033,602,350) % HK$153,786,587 HK$151,680,118
HKS0.05 each FIREE0SE L ERK 153,786,5877 7 151,680,118/ 7T
Equivalent to EER RMB134,316,000 RMB132,660,000

AR¥1343160000T  AK132,660,0007C

The following changes in the Company’s issued share capital
took place during the year:

FARABEETRAZEINT

Number of
ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each
BREE Nominal value of
0.05:5 Ty ordinary shares
ZEREE EZEREE
HK$'000 RMB'000
FET ARETT
Issued and fully paid: ERTREBE
As at 1 January 2012 201251 A18 3,005,906,950 150,295 131,537
Upon exercise of the share options (note) R1TERERHRE (M5E) 27,695,400 1,385 1123
As at 31 December 2012 and 720128128318
1 January 2013 2013F1A18 3,033,602,350 151,680 132,660
Upon exercise of the share options (note) AT RERHRE (M) 42,129,390 2,106 1,656
As at 31 December 2013 720135125315 3,075,731,740 153,786 134,316
Note: BisE -

Pursuant to the exercise of the share options at the exercise price of HK$1.82
each granted by the Company, the Company issued a total of 42,129,390
ordinary shares (2012: 27,695,400 ordinary shares) of HK$0.05 each for a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately HK$76,675,000 (2012:
HK$50,406,000) (approximately RMB60,284,000 (2012: RMB40,872,000)
equivalent) during the year. The shares issued during the year rank pari passu
in all respects with the then existing shares of the Company.
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BBETEESRRN1.82BTTTERARRE L
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2013
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27. RESERVES

(A)

(B)

GROUP

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-
foreign joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of
the Group's subsidiaries which are established in the PRC
has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted
as to use.

27. #E

(A)

A 5%H
AEEAEERBEERNHESE
RERHERAGAREEDRAL
5

RIBERRPING ERRORRAR
FOER - REBERBEKINMER
A B EMNEEEERER RS
EED -

COMPANY (B) A&AF
Share Exchange
option fluctuation
Share reserve reserve Retained Total
premium SRR B R KE profits @t
RADERE i i HREBER
Note RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000
i ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®ETT ARETRH

At1January 2012 R012F1A18 1,683,990 72,404 (157,232) 368,503 1,967,665
Total comprehensiveincome R 2 EK

forthe year k) - - 25 302,123 302,379
Issue of shares BT 64,251 (24,569) - - 39,682
Equity-settled share option VAR £

arrangements BREL - 20,252 - - 20,252
Dividends recognised as R AMEE AP

distributions to owners I8, 10 - - - (293,834) (293,834)
At31 December 2012 and R20125612A318

1 January 2013 R2013F1A18 1,748,241 68,087 (156,976) 376,792 2,036,144
Total comprehensive income  FAZE

for the year B - - (66,683) 338,449 271,766
Issue of shares 7kt 95,390 (36,845) - - 58,545
Equity-settled share option ~ JARRIEAEE K

arrangements B - 5,757 - - 5,757
Dividends recognised as BRAENEEAD RSN

distributions to owners %8 10 - - - (291,809) (291,809)
At 31 December 2013 R20135F12A318 1,843,631 36,999 (223,659) 423432 2,080,403

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options
expire or be forfeited.

BRERBREDR TERITERNE
Brhg ) X B (AN B 5 R Y 5 2.4
AR B ER N R S &R BR
Frafat) o 5 B B8 1 B s AL
BT ERERER DR ERIAAE
BRE R B B0 W SR ERE R
A e
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 28. FBIRHESTE

120

On 14 May 2010 (the "“Adoption Date"”), the Company adopted
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme") and a pre-
initial public offering share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme ("Eligible
Persons”) include (a) any executive director of, manager of, or
other employee holding an executive, managerial, supervisory
or similar position in any member of the Group (“Executive”),
any full-time or part-time employee, or a person for the time
being seconded to work full-time or part-time for any member
of the Group; (b) a director or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of
the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or representative
of any member of the Group; (f) a person or entity that provides
design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of the
Group; and (g) an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (c) above.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date. An offer of the
grant of a share option shall remain open for acceptance by the
Eligible Person concerned for a period of 28 days from the date
of the Board approving the grant of the share options (the “Offer
Date") provided that no such grant of an option may be accepted
after the expiry of the effective period of the Share Option
Scheme. An option shall be deemed to have been granted and
accepted by the Eligible Person and to have taken effect when
the duplicate offer letter comprising acceptance of the offer of
the Option duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for
the grant thereof is received by the Company on or before the
date upon which an offer of an option must be accepted by the
relevant Eligible Person, being a date not later than 28 days after
the Offer Date. Such remittance shall in no circumstances be
refundable.
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31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 28. E%&*Eﬁ%ﬂ(%)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
No share options have been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to give
the employees an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company and help motivate them to optimise their future
performance and efficiency to the Group and/or to reward them
for their past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on-going relationships with such employees who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the Group.
The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
substantially the same as the terms of the Share Option Scheme
except that:

(i) the subscription price per share under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall be at a 30% discount to the offer
price of HK$2.6; and

(i) all options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
will only be vested in the following manner:

Maximum percentage of

Vesting period options exercisable

25% of the total number of
the shares under options

From the 1st anniversary of
the Listing Date until the day
immediately before the 2nd
anniversary of the Listing Date

35% of the total number of
the shares under options

From the 2nd anniversary of
the Listing Date until the day
immediately before the 3rd
anniversary of the Listing Date

40% of the total number of
the shares under options

From the 3rd anniversary of
the Listing Date until the day
immediately before the 4th
anniversary of the Listing Date

FB AT B ()
RN B RNEBAERTBIAN - WEARIRZ
AHEIR HEBAE

BRARBERNEREE

BRAFEENEREAEEERTRER
AREFAEEAERNEE  BBRERR
RAEBIHERERT REE - & REE
BERBENER - ARA NI EZEH AR
EEEE ERIRNEHEER FHE
RIBENRAEERE - BRIKINNES -
HEZEFREMAFREME - BRAAREES
A BB A AT 810 £ 2 IR LR AR ot IR0 15
HABAAR - HETHIHERS

() BRAFABEEFBERESETH
BERRBEEREHEE 268 T E
30% : K&

(i) BRAFEEMBRETHETED
BT AR E LA T T RS

AATREM AR
REHR BESHEDL
BLETEHE—ERFA BRESRRND
HEZZ EmAS HEBIH)25%
S EAFHAZ B I
BETEHE _@RFA BRESNRD
FEEERE FTH A HBERE35%
E={EAFHAZB I
BEMAME=EFR BREY&RD
=R F A HEREIA0%
SVERFHATZ B IE
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
The option period shall be expired on the fourth anniversary of
the Listing Date.

All the options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were
granted on 21 May 2010 at a consideration of HK$1 paid by each
grantee. The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon the exercise of all options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is 115,378,000.

Pre-IPO Share Options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The fair value of the Pre-IPO Share Options granted on 21 May
2010 was estimated at approximately HK$128,071,000, using
a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists
the inputs to the model used:

8. BREITE )

BRRRBERBRETE(E)
IR EAR G £ A BE MERAS A
i o

BHR AR ERBRERTSIE TR BB
BEER2010F5 821 BHE T » SERALA
BRERIET - AREEITERIEEAA
FEERERETERE A BRER
AR TTH AR A1) 42205 115,378,000
B e

BRAREENERET L EE THAEA
R B HN B RAE LIRERER) -

72010F5 421 BE LM E X ARBEERE
A& HER) A F1EHET49/5128,071,0007 7T -
b THAE = B P HH B R 0 16k B A 12
FRZIEREAGE - TREIIEXAERL
N

Batch #k 1 2 3
Dividend yield (%) IREBE(%) 3.169 3.169 3.169
Expected volatility (%) TEERIE(%) 56.58 56.58 56.58
Risk-free rate (%) EERSE(%) 0.794 0.956 1.126
Expected option period (Years) BT ER(F) 2.59 3.09 359

The following share options were outstanding under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme during the year:

TR BRRFEEABEESEIE T AR
TTERBBRERESHIIT

Exercise price Number of options

BRITHEE BRESE

HKS$ per share ‘000

BT T

At 1January 2013 201351 A1H 182 77,888
Exercised during the year FRFTEE 182 (42,129)
Lapsedjforfeited during the year FERRB SR 1.82 (369)
At31 December 2013 20135128318 1.82 35,390

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$5.10 per share
(2012: HK$4.81 per share).
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 28. E%&*Eﬁ%ﬂ(%)

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

R AR ERERETE (E)
R2013F 12 A31H » MARITE AR ER
TEERITEHESHTIAT

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE BRITEE el
‘000 HKS$ per share
T BT
1,400 1.82 23 June 2011 to 22 June 2014
201146 A 238 2201456 5 22H
6,961 1.82 23 June 2012 to 22 June 2014
2012676 A23H 2201456 A 2R
27,029 1.82 23 June 2013 to 22 June 2014
201356 5230 220146 A 22H
35,390
# The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case # BB ITEEN R BT AR A

of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's
share capital.

The Group recognised a share option expense of RMB5,757,000
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB20,252,000) in
relation to the Pre-IPO Share Options granted by the Company.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 35,389,660
(2012: 77,888,250) Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options would, under the Company'’s
present capital structure, result in the issue of additional
35,389,660 (2012: 77,888,250) ordinary shares of the Company,
representing 1.15% (2012: 2.57%) of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date and additional share capital of approximately
HK$1,769,000 (2012: HK$3,894,000) and share premium of
approximately HK$62,640,000 (2012: HK$137,862,000) (before
issue expenses).

AR AR UE B AOER T RETTHE -

AEERAARFEFHE X AFREESAE
AEHENE E20135F12 A31 B IEFEERNER
R BE IR S B A R 5,757,000 (2012
F: AR#20,252,0007T) °

RMEER AR EXARBEERER
75T )18 T 1% 5 35,389,66017 (2012 4 -
77,888,2501% ) B X AR B E B IS I R B
ITE o HIRIE AR FIRE A A REBERT
FZEHRETENE X AREEAER
¥ - BN B #1788 40 35,389,660 A%
(20124 : 77,888,2500% ) LAk - G AR
RIRZ A B BTN A1.15% (20124 :
2.57% ) K EE A FEHINA91,769,00078 7T (2012
% © 3,894,000/ 7T ) AR 78 I 4962,640,000
7T (20124F 137,862,000 7T ) BI L1734
BECRINBREITHAS) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7SR M 5 )
31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

29.

During the year, the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreements to acquire 100% equity interests in the following

EBE

FA - AEFEE B B AR N5 AT
A100% AR A %S -

companies:
Acquisition date  Company name Consideration Principal activities
WEEE ARER RE TEEB
31 January 2013 Guangdong Lesso Valve Co., Ltd.* RMB116,000,000 Manufacture and sale of valve products
(“Lesso Valve”)
VI3F1ANE ERBZEHFIBRAR A £116,000,0007T R EREE RIHE
(28R )
30 April 2013  Fengyang Chiao Yue New Construction RMB136,149,000 Manufacture and sale of calcium silicate board
Material Co., Ltd.* (“Chiao Yue")®
WI3F4ANE BSEHRIE RV ERAR AR #136,149,0007T RS IRIBE R E
(TEw )™
1July 2013 Guangdong Lesso 0'Conn Fire Service RMB10,000,000 Manufacture and sale of fire equipment
Equipment Co., Ltd.* (“Lesso 0'Conn”) and other accessories
WIIFIANE ERBERRICEREERAF A 110,000,0007C BT NGB I EL A B M O BE e SHE
(IBEBRER])
1July 2013 Guangdong Lesso Shun An Fire Service RMB4,000,000 Manufacture and sale of fire doors,
Equipment Co., Ltd.* (“Lesso Shun An") security doors and other accessories
WIETAIE ERMLBIERE SR ERAF A #4,000,0007T DI NPT~ B P R E B BGE R SHE
([l )
31 August 2013 Foshan Nanhai Eago Sanitary RMB20,000,000 Manufacture and sale of plumbing sanitary wares
Ware Co., Ltd.* (“Nanhai Eago”)
W1I3F8ANE FILTREERSEAERAF AR #:20,000,0007T IREREDARBLE K SHE

(5% )

The above acquisitions allow the Group to expand its production

lines on the valve supply for the Group's water supply-related
pipe projects and on the other home building materials products.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

sk MYt o)
31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 29. ¥%& 0t
The respective fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities AAREEREEHIE B - FrkEE LA T
of the above companies acquired at the dates of control assumed EAWTEEENBEATENT
by the Group are as follows:
Lesso Lesso Nanhai
LessoValve  Chiao Yue 0'Conn Shun An Eago Total
BB RRFY B HERER HKEER @8R8 B
Notes ~ RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR%TR
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - B & R4 12 35,517 109,015 122 1470 128,952 275,076
Prepaid land lease payments T+ E R 13 32,194 6,610 - - - 38,804
Other intangible assets Hip B\ aE - - - - 770 770
Inventories T5E 22,987 11,755 1,162 14,762 48,724 99,390
Trade receivables Z S IEWEIA 292 1,177 31 643 521 3210
Prepayments and other BRRREMD
receivables FEU A 2M 16,011 1,086 2,401 12,288 54,197
Cash and cash equivalents BERELEEY 4,154 220 9,725 1,984 3,995 20,078
Trade payables Z SENHIE (602) (2.212) (399) (2,663) (29,556 (35,492)
Other payables HiENTIER
and accruals ezt EH (796) (6,967) (1,727) (14,597) (133,49) (157,583)
Bank loans and RITEFR
other borrowings HipfER - - - - (12,204) (12,204)
Total identifiable net assets at A3 5| & B/ F{E 4258
fair value (BATE) 116,157 136,149 10,000 4,000 20,000 286,306
Cash e 116,000 134,184 10,000 4,000 20,000 284,184
Contingent consideration FIARE
arrangement (note (b)) ZHE(Fi 5 (b)) 2 - 1,965 - - - 1,965
Total consideration R{ELE 116,000 136,149 10,000 4,000 20,000 286,149
Gain from a bargain purchase  ZEBUEEFEFIR
(note 7) (FteET) 157 - - - - 157

The gain from a bargain purchase of RMB157,000 arising from
the acquisition of Lesso Valve has been recognised in profit
or loss and included in the “other expenses” to offset the
acquisition-related costs mentioned below.

Acquisition-related costs incurred in relation to the acquisition
of Lesso Valve of RMB619,000, Chiao Yue of RMB2,580,000,
Lesso O'Conn of RMB41,000, Lesso Shun An of RMB40,000
and Nanhai Eago of RMB2,610,000 have been excluded from
the cost of acquisition and have been recongnised directly as an
expense in the period and included in the “other expenses” in
profit or loss.

The aggregate fair values of the trade receivables and other
receivables as at the dates of control assumed by the Group
amounted to RMB3,270,000 and RMB32,857,000, respectively,
which approximate to the gross contractual amounts of those
corresponding balances acquired by the Group. At the dates of
control assumed by the Group, the management considered
that the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected is
insignificant.

BB 2 R PTRE B B S NIE AR
157,0007T ER BRI FI [ E b F < |
VA8 T SXER B RO U RB AR RAAK S

FLUREEEEZBRAPT - B8 - BB ERBIIR - B
E%Z2 & 598 25 1 1 o0 Bl 72 AE 9 AR BB AR B A
KA NREG619,0007T « AR #2,580,000
7T~ AR#41,0007T © ARB40,0007T K
AR #2,610,0007T B #% 5 % H WA A 2
G BEREIRNEEER A LN
Bl EFET A -

RAKBEERSZEGIE B - EFREGAR
HMEYWHRIEN A FEEARD I BARK
3,270,0007T K A R #32,857,0007T + B2 A
SEWBZEHRESHNA NS RAEN
B NAEERGIEGIEZE  ERERR
BEHEEEENENRERELTERX -
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MRS TRR M T )

31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions of
subsidiaries is as follows:

29. ¥ & /t@m

ERYEHBARMNRSREDITNT

RMB’000

AREFTT

Cash consideration paid [RENEE AL 284,184

Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired W BRER S MRS EEY (20,078)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents RETHRENRS R

included in investing activities ReEEMRLFE 264,106

Since their acquisitions, these subsidiaries contributed
RMB88,893,000 to the Group's revenue and recognised a profit
of RMB11,665,000 in profit or loss for the current year.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the
Group’s revenue and profit for the current year would have been
RMB13,169,678,000 and RMB1,431,330,000 respectively.

Notes:

(a) Chiao Yue was acquired by the Group at a cash consideration of
RMB5,000,000 and the shareholders’ loans payable by Chiao Yue for
RMB131,149,000, respectively. Chiao Yue was renamed as Anhui
Lesso Chiao Yue New Construction Material Co., Ltd.* subsequent to
its acquisition by the Group.

(b) The contingent consideration will only be paid if certain government
subsidies are obtained with the assistance from the vendor on or before
31 March 2014. The amount of RMB1,965,000 has been included
in “other payables and accruals” on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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[Bf A R#588,893,0007T * WA AFZHIEZS
AR @A AR 11,665,0007T °

WA TR ENHETT  NEERAFE R
AN D B A ARE13,169,678,0007T
B AR#1,431,330,0007T ©
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(a) AEBRBBFEENRSRERGBHEEMNR
HEFH A A ARE5000,0007T kA KK
131,149,0007T ° B B AR EE YR B LE A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

LUpU e EC

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

31.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2012: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company issued financial
guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to
subsidiaries. The aggregate amounts that could be required to
be paid if the guarantees were called upon in entirety amounted
to RMB525,215,000 (2012: RMB378,539,000), of which
RMB262,827,000 (2012: RMB158,944,000) has been utilised by
the subsidiaries. At the end of the reporting period, no amount
(2012: Nil) has been recognised in the Company's statement of
financial position as liabilities in respect of such guarantees.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(A) ASLESSOR
The Group leases certain office premises under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to ten years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

30.

31.

HAREE

PRIRERR - AEEREIMNEARAEE
(20124 : &) o

RIBEHR ARRREBETHBERARLN
RITRERRITE LM BER - HEK
FEREERBETFTINNESTAA
R % 525,215,000 7T ( 2012 5 : A R %
378,539,0007T) * EHd AR¥262,827,000
J0(20124F + AR#158,944,0007T) E M}
BRAREA - RIEHKR - ARFNTH
AR 2R B SZ R R M R (AT B & (2012
F ) o

REHERH

(A) fERHBEA
AEBRBEEEERLEETH
HHREA—Z=+FITE -

RE

RERR - RIBEHEF TSR
BEREEEY - AEEEIHE LR
REEESEEWT

>

2013 2012

2013F 2126

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Within one year —FR 967 1,204
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ERFNEN(BEERME) 1,051 602
After five years hFk& 62 26
2,080 1,832
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31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

31. KREHEZHwm)

(B) AS LESSEE (B) fEHRAEMEA
The Group leases certain of its office premises, production REBRBKEHRELE HAET
plants, warehouses and equipment under operating lease WAE  LERE  RERERE -
arrangements. Leases are negotiated for terms ranging PEEAE—2TFETE -
from one to ten years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total RMEEKR - IBETTHEEESHE
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable %) NEE R EAEN AR R FERS
operating leases falling due as follows: WEET
2013 2012
20135 2126
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Within one year —FR 17,111 11,208
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EZERFN(REEEMTE) 44,547 12127
After five years hFE 8,250 -
70,574 23,335
32. COMMITMENTS 32. &iE

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

RIEMR - REBBAATEAAIE

2013 2012
20135 20126
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBTT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHENEIEER AR
Land, property, plant and equipment Tih - W - BERH 454,881 320,969
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2013412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 33. BBA TR Z RERR

BALANCES
(A) THE GROUP’S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH (A) FEEAFEEHEEBALTZEAX
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR: 5
2013 2012
213F 20126
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
BisE AR¥T T AREFT
Transactions with companies under the common ~ AZREHRT —ESE
control of a director: THN AR S -
Sales of goods HEEM (i) 6,408 -
Provision of utilities REAREE (ii) = 4,948
Consumption of utilities S VNES (il 6,744 5,551
Rental income Helias (iii) = 641
Rental expenses i (iii) 3316 2,210
Purchases of materials REEME (iv) 8,340 5,053
Purchases of equipment REERLE v) 75,218 55,261
Purchase of electronic accessories RS TR (v) 4,085 -
Licensing trademarks BTaE (vi) 500 730
Licensing patents BTEH (vi) 17 32
Acquisition cost for Lesso Valve B 2B AP 2 B AR (vii) 116,000 -
Agency services from companies NE M EEEFNZHE
under the control of a director NAFTRERRERE (v 3,600 4,265
Advisory services from a company NEFAEAFE NN
under the significant influence —fARARIFTHRER
of directors RS (viii) 4,845 -
Rental expenses paid to directors REEXNNESHZ (ix) 3121 3,231
Design and maintenance services from AEPERBAORET
ajoint venture RAMERT (x) 2,330 -
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31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(A) THE GROUP’'S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Sales of goods to related companies were made with reference
to the price and conditions offered by the Group to the third-
party customers.

(ii) Utilities were provided to/by related companies at cost.
(iii) Rental income/expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

(iv) Purchases of materials from related companies were made
based on mutually agreed terms.

(v) Purchases of equipment and electronic accessories from
related companies were made with reference to the prices and
conditions offered by the related companies to their third-party
customers.

(vi) Licensing trademarks and patents to related companies were
conducted based on mutually agreed terms.

(vi)  The consideration was agreed after arm’s length negotiations
with reference to the fair value of net assets of Lesso Valve at
approximately RMB116,500,000 as at 31 December 2012, as
assessed by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited,
an independent professionally qualified valuer. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement on connected transaction
in relation to the acquisition of entire equity interest in Lesso
Valve dated 15 January 2013.

(viii)  Agency services and advisory services were provided by related
companies based on mutually agreed terms.

(ix) Properties including office premises, cafeteria, workshops and
warehouses were leased to the Group based on mutually agreed
terms.

(x) Services were provided by a joint venture based on mutually

agreed terms.

The related party transactions in respect of the above
items also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

(B) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARITIES
The balances with related parties are included in
the Group's deposits paid for the purchase of land,
property, plant and equipment, representing deposits
of RMB5,920,000 (2012: Nil) paid to a company under
the common control of a director for the purchases of
machinery.
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33. AL E RES @

(A)

(B)

FTEERFEEEFBALT ZEAR
2 (#)

ME -

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

B2 4K 55 & T AR R E
= ERFRI @S R A2 RS
e

INEEE JEE NS i) NI
IR o

B s,/ IS YR 2R R
B

FRE TR & 75 15 5E B9 15 5K 7 R B 2 )

RELEFREDELEHEHATM
HE=DEPRENERREMHER
BB LAEEE -

BT B A AN EEREA DRSS
BRI BERRIETT -

REDZRABLEESERGEER
FE-ATFHENGEEREXEMAR
AR B BRI 2012F12A31H
ZFEERATEEEHZFHEHOARKE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 33. @A TR ERESH @
BALANCES (Continued)

(C) COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES (C) EEREEANTHIEESEIE
Certain of the Group's subsidiaries have entered into AEBETHBE AR AHEMEER
lease agreements with directors to lease properties EHRHEERIIVHAE RS - ARK
for operations. The operating lease commitments of 16,163,000 T 48 & H E A HE AR /&
RMB16,163,000 with lease terms of three to nine =ENF - BERUBHREMEEI1B)
years have been included in note 31(B) to the financial F oo
statements.
(D) COMPENSATION OF THE GROUP’S KEY MANAGEMENT (D) AEEFTEEEAEHTM
PERSONNEL
2013 2012
213F 2124
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Short-term employee benefits EHEEEN 1,005 6,105
Post-employment benefits BREEF 266 22
Equity-settled share option expense VAR 45 5 AR AR B <2 1173 4,039
8,444 10,376
Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in EEHMRFH BRI B IREMFESA) -

note 8(A) to the financial statements.
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2013%12A31H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34. E@MTE
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) £@RTAEH
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBERR  SELRIAMERRE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T
follows:
Group
F5E
2013 2012
2013F 2126
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FiEE ARETR ARBTT
Financial assets TREE
Investments RE
Held-to-maturity investments BRI ERE 16 249,001 288,690
Loans and receivables B RENKE
Trade and bills receivables BoREWFELREE 18 1,037,629 1,009,534
Other receivables HippEliE 19 50,825 19,610
Cash and bank deposits B RIFITER 20 2,189,242 1,922,325
3,271,696 2,951,469
3,526,697 3,240,159
Financial liabilities =N
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B #HHELTEH2HEE
Trade and bills payables LBEENFIEREE 21 861,416 512,054
Financial liabilities included in other payables =+ A H b fE (S FIB L fE=T & F
and accruals HemasE 2 430,141 233,582
Bank loans and other borrowings BTETREMER 23 2,687,116 2,224,582
3,978,673 2,970,218

132  china Lesso Group Holdings Limited & 28 2 M2 38 45 R 2 5



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
PGS e EEAE)

31 December 2013
2013412 A31H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34. TR T H@m)
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (A) £BIEHERI(E)
Company
AT
2013 2012
213F 20124
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE AR¥T T ARBFT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables B REWHE
Loans to a subsidiary m—FMB AR ER 14 1,357,741 1,365,118
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables  TE{I3X » 1% RE M E I8 5112 3,217
Cash and bank deposits e RFTER 20 337413 57,509
1,700,926 1,425,844
Financial liability SRBE
Financial liability at amortised cost HEBEAAI RN L HEE
Bank loans and other borrowings SITEFREAMER 23 2,041,988 1,877,816
(B) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL (B) S«RTEMNAFEE
INSTRUMENTS
Group
rEE
2013 2012
20135 2012
Carrying amount Fairvalue Carrying amount Fair value
IREE NEE BRMEE AYE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR¥T T ARETT AREFT
Financial asset THEE
Held-to-maturity instruments BERRERE 249,001 260,137 288,690 316,582
Financial liability SRBE
Bank loans and other borrowings  $R/TE R R E b {E5K
—The Senior Notes —BERE 1,545,824 1,678,698 1,585,910 1,706,766
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

134

34. €T Hum

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL (B) £RIENAFEEIER)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Company
KAT]
2013 2012
20135 20124
Carrying amount Fairvalue Carrying amount Fair value
BREE A¥E REE AE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥T R ARETT ARETT
Financial liability SRBE
Bank loans and other borrowings  $B1TE 2 R Efb{E 2k
—The Senior Notes —BEER 1,505,824 1,678,698 1,585,910 1,706,766

The fair values are based on the quoted market price
provided by a leading global financial market data provider.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time
and are based on relevant market information about the
financial instruments. The fair values of financial assets
and liabilities are included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction

between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation

sale. The following methods and assumptions were used

to estimate the fair values:

o The fair values of held-to-maturity investments and
the Senior Notes are derived from quoted prices in
active market for identical assets or liabilities, i.e.,
level 1 fair value hierarchy in accordance with HKFRS

7.

° The fair values of trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, cash and bank deposits, trade and bills

payables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of

these instruments.

o The fair values of bank loans and other borrowings
(excluding the Senior Notes) have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments on similar

terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. ERIEREE B FERBUER

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank loans
and other borrowings and cash and short-term deposits. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. As the Group's exposure to these risks is kept to
a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The
Broad reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

INTEREST RATE RISK

In respect of the floating interest rate instruments, the Group
is subject to the cash flow interest rate risk, while for the fixed
interest rate instruments, the Group is subject to fair value
interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax by assuming the
floating rate borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting

AEENTECRTEABERITERLEAM
%?ﬂ%&ﬁ@&%ﬂﬂﬂrm o %E %rﬂiﬁé’]
IZABRNAREENSEREEES - £AE
lﬁﬁﬁf@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?iﬂ’]?\ﬂimﬂé?
KEfE - HIaneE 5 R WOsRoR K E At FE WK
KB 5 AN SRR R B A A BOR

Zliﬁlﬁmﬁlélfciﬂﬁixﬂ Y=Y ESED
CHNERRR - EERRRRENE SRR o
EEb‘é$%lﬁﬁ%@‘é‘ﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁtﬁﬁ%ﬁhﬁémﬁ*
o REEEEREMNITETAREMT
EAVES R 2 3 o REBN B G S E1T1T
FeRMIAMFERE R - EEgE &ML
FAEZEFRBEROBER - ZMawT -

Fl=EB

FHHET ARBERAEERERRS HER
EEG - B = T A S SR A
AFEFIZER -

TRER RN RS RN R BT IR
REHR2FAEE - B ELBHR
BAE - AEERBATE R A R A R0 A
KB 2 BURE o

period were outstanding for the whole year.

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points profit before tax
B STl
i,/ (L) 0,/ (D)
RMB'000
ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2013 HEN13FENANBIFE 50 (5,706)
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE013F12831H LFE (50) 5,706
Year ended 31 December 2012 HEW0FNANELFE 50 (2,433)
Year ended 31 December 2012 HZE012F128318 LFE (50) 2,433

Annual Report 2013 3 13D



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B 7SR M 5 )
31 December 2013
2013%12A31H

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group's main businesses are located in Mainland China and
most of the transactions are conducted in Renminbi. Most of
the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi,
except for certain bank balances and bank loans and other
borrowings denominated in HK dollar and US dollar. The Group
has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Renminbi
against the relevant currencies, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and loans).

35. SREMEIEEERBER @)

SN ELB
REBEN T ZEBHEMNR BN - HAE
DRBPANREHETT - REBABHEE
RABERAREHE - EETRITEHLR
TERREMEFABTRETLE - A&
0 A EL I R BRI T ©

TRETRBEMR - EEEMEHRS
TEHERT - NEBEBRV DG AR
REMABEBEEXNEEAEES (AN
EREEENERNRFEEF B 28

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit before tax
HK$/US$ rate BrBiAT
BT/ ETER |
EH(TER) #in,/ (fD)
% RMB’000
AR¥TT
2013 2013F
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ HARBE A TH(E 5 (23,156)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ HARE B THE (5) 23,156
If the RMB weakens against the US$ HARKERETRE 5 (70,980)
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ HARBEETHE (5) 70,980
2012 20126
If the RMB weakens against the HKS AR B TE(E 5 461
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ WARKE LB LE (5) (461)
If the RMB weakens against the US$ WARKE S ZETRE 5 (88,326)
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ WARBHETHE (5) 88,326
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. SRIEREE R BERBER@®

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

CREDIT RISK

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and bank deposits and other receivables, arises
from potential default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and available funding through various sources of finances to
meet its commitments.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
end of each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

FERR

AREBERBERRRAZER FENE =TT
X5 o MBAEBHRE - ARREEH
ETRZNEP  MALTEBBREEZER
Fr o LEAh - AEEFE R WA ARSI
RASERZRRBRIT TEX -

AEEWEMEREE(BRRE LRITHE
RREMBERFR)WERERRRERZY
TTHEERY  SRRBIEESENZETIA
HART(E

AR AEEEREAR R EERENE =T
ETR G WAFEREMRMR

RBEEER
AEEBOMERFTRNRE MRS FEY
WEBTRARBREARESES -

NBRTRIARITE N RAELE - REERSHR
SHRNERABIHERAT

2013
2013F
More than
Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2years Total
1FR 1226 R 250k gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Group AEH AR®TR AR®TR AR¥T T ARETR
Trade and bills payables EZENTERZE 861,416 - - 861,416
Financial liabilities included in other ST AE M BN RUE K fEET

payables and accruals BRMNSHER 430,141 - - 430,14
Bank loans and other borrowings RITER R EAET 886,318 187,050 1,646,035 2,719,403
2,171,875 187,050 1,646,035 4,010,960
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. SRlEMEE B ZEREE @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) REBESEME(E)
2012
20124
More than
Within 1 year 1to2years 2years Total
1A 1225 e st
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB ' 000 RMB " 000
Group AEE ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT ARBTT
Trade and bills payables B oRNFIERER 512,054 - - 512,054
Financial liabilities included in other s AE b B S FIE M fE AT
payables and accruals BRMNSHER 233,582 - - 233,582
Bank loans and other borrowings RITER R EAET 729,455 151,133 1,848,131 2,728.719
1,475,091 151,133 1,848,131 3,474,355
2013
20135
More than
Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2years Total
1R 122K 2Bk w5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Company AT AR¥TR ARETR AR¥T T AR¥T T
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMER 624,068 124,715 1,646,035 2,394,818
Financial guarantee contracts BITSRIRAH 201,653 61,174 - 262,821
825,721 185,889 1,646,035 2,657,645
2012
2124
More than
Within 1 year 1to2years 2years Total
1ER 1226 2FPAE st
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000
Company AN/NE] ARBTT ARBTT ARET T ARET T
Bank loans and other borrowings BITERREMER 423,833 128,620 1,826,199 2,378,652
Financial guarantee contracts EEREYD 116,071 21,431 21,436 158,944
539,904 150,057 1,847,635 2,537,596
The amount included above for financial guarantee contracts B BIERAE N BEESNSEE - TIRIER

are the maximum amounts the Company could be required to
settle under the arrangements for the full guaranteed amounts in
connection with banking facilities granted to subsidiaries if those
amounts are claimed by the counterparties to the guarantees.
Based on expectation at the end of the reporting period, the
Company considers that it is more likely than not that no amount

will be payable under such arrangements.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern and to
maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity ratio, which
is net debt divided by capital. Net debt includes bank loans and
other borrowings less cash and bank deposits. Capital represents
the total equity.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's strategy was to
maintain the net debt to equity ratio at a healthy level in order
to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted by
the Group include, without limitation, reviewing future cash flow
requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing
plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable
level of capital to support its business. The net debt to equity
ratios at the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

35.

SREREEHERBEK @

EREE

AEEEAEENERZ A RERREAEEE
BUFBEEEENREN - URBRAIEN
EREESFEER - WRERERNEER

TTE&S °

AEERBEERN S B ERHLEARER
TEHE - BERIHAEEARE  A&E
ARENTRERORE - ABREEDER
HEITHR - FA - BEREANEE - BEE

AEBUMRRS FRE RS REITER - &
HEBEHFERAER - B FEBER
TERREMETRIRE RIRITEKX - EX
WEECL: Sttt i

RIEBR - REBORB RERHERFR
HBRERLRAERBKY - USFEER - K
S BIERENH) = B AL B IR E TRV EHE AR
REeREFHEINBEEBNEE S - REF
ARRITREERIEKT RABRATER
BMEFE(NFR) UBRAEEHEFSIE
IKFRBE AR EER - RBEHRNES
SRR LR T

2013 2012

2135 20126

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR%TR AREFT

Bank loans and other borrowings IRITER R EAb AR 2,687,116 2,224,582
Less: Cash and bank deposits o RE RIRITER (2,189,242) (1,922,325)
Net debt &% %R 497,874 302,257
Total equity e 7,255,943 6,027,918
Net debt to equity ratio AR F R L 1% 5%
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36. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 36. {EWREE
On 3 March 2014, the Company as borrower entered into a 20143 A3H - ARFRI(EABRA)HE
facility agreement in relation to a syndicated term loan facility in (Hhaif) 6t 5 B ERTROD AR A A
the amount of US$135,000,000 at an interest rate of LIBOR plus FABEEERERITROERARNHEAS
2.00% per annum with, among others, Taipei Fubon Commercial SEEBETHA) AR NEASRBEER A —
Bank Co., Ltd. and CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. as mandated lead TE/A #8135,000,000% 7T + FIE SRBERIT
arrangers, and a syndicate of nine lenders, for the purpose of RZEFREMTFF2.00% N RETHERHE
refinancing the Group's existing financial indebtedness. The loan & B AAEEREMEAE
made thereunder is repayable 36 months after the same has Batg - BZWZE MEE 2 ERERER
been made. {EH18361E AEE -
37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 37. XEMBLARINFE
SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FRMBARIFELT -
Place of Nominal Percentage of equity
incorporation/ value ofissued attributable to the Company
registrationand  ordinary/registered  Z< 2 R PE(GREZS LI
Name business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
Ealilzayd
E3i11)N ERITLER
= B R AEE HE miE TEER
Starcorp Investment Holdings Ltd. BVI USs$1 100% - Investment holding
ERKRERBRERAR RBHERRES (E 100% - RERERK
Great China International BVI USs$1 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Ltd.
FERRRIERAR AR RBHERRES (EV 100% - RERK
China Liansu Investment Limited BVI USs$1 100% - Investment holding
BRI E AR E] RBRRRHS (E 100% - REER
China Liansu Development Limited ~ BVI USs$1 100% - Investment holding
B R AR AR HEERRHE %7 100% - REEK
Liansu Group Company Limited Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 - 100% Investment holding and sale of
plastic pipes and pipe fittings
BEEEBRAR BE 13,000,000/ 7C - 100% IRERRIHELR
BEREN
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 37. TEME R TNFE @
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Nominal Percentage of equity
incorporation/ value ofissued attributable to the Company
registrationand  ordinary/registered  Z< 2 R]FE{SREZS LI
Name business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
FEMASL,
R ERITZER
g EE I R AEE HiE BiE TEEK
Guangdong Lesso Technology PRC HK$2,250,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
Industrial Co., Ltd.* (@) pipes and pipe fittings
BREERREERRAF H 2,250,000,00077C - 100% BEERHELH
EEREH
Heshan Lesso Industrial PRC HK$269,930,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
Development Co., Ltd.* ® pipes and pipe fittings
BILBZEXERBRARW H 269,930,000/ 7T - 100% BUERIHEEH
EEREMN
Lesso Technology Development PRC HK$111,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd.* ® pipes and pipe fittings
SRR BR(EVL)BRARY  F 111,000,000/ 7 - 100% BHEREEBH
EEREMN
Lesso Technology Development PRC HK$115,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
(Guiyang) Co., Ltd.* ® pipes and pipe fittings
RERRBR(ESR)BRARY  H 115,000,000/ 7 - 100% BHEREEDH
EENREMN
Nanjing Lesso Technology Industrial ~ PRC US$26,750,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
Co., Ltd.* ®l pipes and pipe fittings
HRBER R EERR AR H 26,750,000 7T - 100% BHERIEELH
EEREN
Lesso Municipal Pipe (Hebei) PRC US$27,790,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
Co., Ltd.* ® pipes and pipe fittings
BEmEEBCTIL)ARARL 27,790,000 7T - 100% BHERIHELH
EEREN
Henan Lesso Industrial Co., Ltd.*'@  PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings
AEEMEEEBRARC H AR #200,000,0007C - 100% BEERHELH
EEREMN
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)  Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the
laws of the PRC.

(b)  Registered as equity joint ventures under the laws of the
PRC.

(c)  Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of
the PRC.

The above table lists the Company’s subsidiaries which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the Group's net assets.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board on 17 March 2014.
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GLOSSARY

e

“Board”
=

“BVI"
[REHARES]

“China” or “PRC"
[FE )

“CIT”
[RRATEH

“Code”
[=r 81

"Company” or “China Lesso”

[ARRA] k[ o B 22 |

"EBITDA"
[BR SRS #E AT E R ]

"Group”
[A&EH

“Guangdong Liansu Electric”

[ SR LT

"Guangdong Liansu Machinery”
[ RS A 25 |

“Guangdong Lesso Technology”
[ B EREsE 2B R

"HK$"
[#T]

"Hong Kong" or “HK"
[&H]

“Listing Rules”

[ EmRA

“Macau”

[T ]
“Model Code”

[Essra))

the board of directors of the Company

AAREFE

the British Virgin Islands
EEERRES

the People’'s Republic of China, for the purpose of this annual report,
excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

g ANRATE - RAFHTE - LFREES AFIRES

corporate income tax

EMEHR

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

LERAIRER AP B ST A

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
PR B R BT B R A A

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation

S~ BR -~ EREHAAN

the Company and its subsidiaries
RATREKMEAF

Guangdong Liansu Electric Co., Ltd.*, a company indirectly wholly-owned
by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of the Company as defined
under the Listing Rules

EBRBZEREGRAR  BERELLEAEZEREANAR  WAKRARMNH
EAT(EER EMRA)

Guangdong Liansu Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*, a company
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of
the Company as defined under the Listing Rules
BREEREBRGERRAT  BERELAREZEEENRA]  URAAT
WEEAL(ER R ETAAD

Guangdong Lesso Technology Industrial Co., Ltd.*, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

ERBEMIERZARAR  RARARANHEZEMB AR

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BB EEERE AT

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEIEBSRITTRE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B2 Prg 27 E AR Al

Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
A EDRPIRFRITTI R

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as

set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
AR RIS 0FTE A E T A RIE R HITE AR HHIRESTR
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GLOSSARY (Continued)

ARl ()

“New Fortune”
BN

"pE"
[PEJ

"PP-R”
[PP-R]

"Prospectus”
[BRER ]
"PVC”

[PVC]

"RMB”
[ARE ]

"“Senior Notes”

[BERE]

“SFC”

[EEe ]

“SFO"
[ &7 B 5]

"Share(s)”

[ A&t ]
“Shareholder(s)"”
[A& =]

“Shunde Liansu Industrial”
[B/EE B E 2 |

“State Council”

[ B 756 |

"Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 22 FFr

New Fortune Star Limited
New Fortune Star Limited

polyethylene
R

polypropylene random
IARBERG

the Company'’s prospectus dated 9 June 2010
AABAHA2010F6 A9H MBI ER

polyvinyl chloride
BalE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

PRZEEEE - AR

US$300 million 7.875% senior notes due 2016 issued by the Company
RATEITHR2016F 2 BAN3{EE 07876 % B LRI

Securities and Futures Commission
BELMHNEEBRERELZES

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
BREDIFEST EEH L E &)

share(s) of a nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company

ARARERPEREEC.0GETTHI

holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
RARIRGOFEEA

Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co., Ltd.*
BILTIEEREBEEGRAT

The State Council of the PRC
A B 6

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEAMERXGERAT

“Taiwan” the Republic of China

E5 hERE

“tonne(s)” a unit measuring weight, equal to 1,000 kilograms
[ | EEEEMEN - HER1,0008T

"us” the United States of America

(EE EHEE RE

"US$” US dollar, the lawful currency of US

[T EHEEEE —FT

%" per cent.

[% ] Btk

* The English or Chinese translations in this annual report, where indicated, denote for identification purposes only.

* AR R 5Bk T SRR (N AR ) (B (AR
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NCI=e

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Bai Chongen

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Mr. Gao Lixin

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Mr. Lin Dewei

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Dr. Bai Chongen

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Dr. Bai Chongen

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Gao Lixin
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Zuo Manlun
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN CHINA
Liansu Industrial Estate

Longjiang Town

Shunde District

Foshan City

Guangdong Province 528318

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Unit 3, 12th Floor, Tower 2

South Seas Centre

75 Mody Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East

Kowloon, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION
Listing:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock code:
2128

SHARE INFORMATION

Board lot size:
1,000 shares

Share issued as at 31 December 2013:
3,075,731,740 shares

Market capitalisation as at 31 December 2013:
HK$16,609 million
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PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

PERAHRETEERE

i

ER% (84 : 528318)
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EEH L
2[E121E3F

&R
S -

ERBMARZMERAA

B3 -
2128

R4 &
STEEBL
1,000R%

2013512 A31 HE BTN EE -

3,075,731,7400%

M2013%F12A31HHIE :
166.0918%5 7T



CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

NREF )

DIVIDEND

Final dividend per share for the year ended 31 December 2013:
HK12 cents per ordinary share

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual results announcement:
17 March 2014

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS:
— for determining the entitlement to attend and vote at annual general
meeting from 27 to 30 May 2014 (both dates inclusive)

— for determining the entitlement to proposed final dividend from 9 to
11 June 2014 (both dates inclusive)

2014 annual general meeting:
30 May 2014

Payment of 2013 proposed final dividend*:
on or around 20 June 2014

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093

Queensgate House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

* Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2014 annual general meeting to
be held on 30 May 2014.

RE
HZE2013F 12 A3 H IEFE SRR E -
AR BAR 1 278

by JS kTS
EEEMAE -
2014537178

TERERDBFETTFE
— BEHERRRFAETNE ERENERA
201455827230 (BIEEREMX)

— T WEEDR AR B R E K HA2014F6 79
E2NMH(BEERMX)

2014 F R EAFRE -
20144E5 A30H

IRF201 3 R AR HARR B+
201456 8208 s #H:T B T

RODBFELERE
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093
Queensgate House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

BRHBBEERLRDE
BEAPREFESFELERAT
BB

EF 2R RKER1835

A MR D
17#1712-1716 %

* MBI A 201445 A30 B £1TH2014F B IA
FREG LHER - FAIEE -
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
iPR Ogilvy & Mather

Units 2008-12, 20th Floor, The Centre
99 Queen's Road, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606

Email: ir@lesso.com

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong

SOLICITOR
K&L Gates

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
China Construction Bank Corporation
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

rREEBHF
iPREEZEAR
B2/ RNER

FRIR 020422008 E 12E
5 1 (852) 2136 6185
{85 : (852) 3170 6606
FES © ir@lesso.com

R BUEm
AR ER
BB

em
BER RN B

EREREIT
HERERTRHERAT
HEERRTRHERAT
BRRTRHERAT

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
Foshan Shunde Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

PEEERRBITRNDARRRELDTT
LB R R RRITRNER AR
BAERITARAT

PR TR IRTT(EEM)BR AR

PR TERITARMD AR AR
BILEABBRBITRNDERARERDT
B DEESRTERAT

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE #31k

http://www.lesso.com http://www.lesso.com
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Forward-looking statements

This annual report contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking
statements include, without limitation, statements related to revenue and earnings.
The words “believe”, “intend”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “forecast”, “estimate”,
“predict”, “is confident”, “has confidence” and similar expressions are also intended
to represent forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not
historical facts. Rather, the forward-looking statements are based on the current
beliefs, assumptions, expectations, estimates and projections of the directors and
management of China Lesso about the business, industry and markets in which China
Lesso operates.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and
are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond the
Company’s control and are difficult to predict. Consequently, actual results could
differ materially from those expressed, implied or forecasted in the forward-looking
statements.

Reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements, which reflect
only the views of the directors and management of China Lesso as at the date of
this annual report only. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise
these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after
publication of this annual report.
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Unit 3, 12th Floor, Tower 2, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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L (852) 2712 8405
(852) 2714 7022
1 www.lesso.com

@ This annual report is printed on Elemental Chlorine Free (ECF) paper.
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